Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Audit Committee Meeting Minutes
January 20, 2025

2:03 p.m. at City Hall Council Chambers

Committee

Mayor Cecil P. Clarke
Councillor Gordon MacDonald
Councillor Earlene MacMullin
Councillor Esmond “Blue” Marshall
Councillor Steve Gillespie
Councillor Glenn Paruch
Councillor Steve Parsons
Councillor Steven MacNeil
Councillor Paul Nickituk
Councilior Sheppard-Campbell
Citizen Mark Galley

Staff

Demetri Kachafanas, KC, Interim Chief Administrative Officer
Christa Dicks, Municipal Clerk

Jennifer Campbell, Chief Financia! Officer

Yuecong Cao, Administrative Assistant

Kelly McDonald, Recording Secretary

Absent

Deputy Mayor Eldon MacDonald (regrets)
Councillor Dave MacKeigan (regrets)
Councillor Darren O'Quinn (regrets)



Audit Committee Meeting — Minutes
January 20, 2025 Approved March 5, 2025 Page 2 of 3

The following does not represent a word for word record of the proceedings
of this meeting. The agenda, reports, supporting documents, information

items circulated, and video (if available) are online at www.cbrm.ns.ca.

Mayor Cecil P. Clarke called the meeting to order.
Roll Call

n Approval of Agenda

Motion

Moved by Councillor Paruch, seconded by Councillor Parsons, to approve the
January 20, 2025, audit committee agenda as presented.

Motion Carried

2. Presentations
a) Annual Financial Report - Year Ended March 31, 2024
Jennifer Campbell, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), presented the Cape Breton
Regional Municipality’s (CBRM) annual financial report for year ended March
31, 2024. A copy of the presentation is attached to this set of meeting
minutes for reference on page four.
i Draft CBRM Consolidated Financial Statements for
Year Ended March 31, 2024
A copy of the draft CBRM consolidated financial statements for year ended
March 31, 2024, are attached to this set of meeting minutes for reference on
page thirty-one.
ii. Draft CBRM Water Utility Financial Statements for
Year Ended March 31, 2024
A copy of the draft CBRM water utility financial statements for year ended
March 31, 2024, are attached to this set of meeting minutes for reference on
page sixty-five.



Audit Committee Meeting - Minutes
January 20, 2025 Approved March 5, 2025 Page 3 of 3

b) Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee for Year
Ended March 31, 2024
Darren Chiasson, CPA / CA - MNP Parter / Business Advisor, reviewed the
audit process. A copy of the audit findings report presented to the CBRM
Audit Committee for year ended March 31, 2024, is attached to this set of

meeting minutes for reference on page eighty-four.

Mayor Clarke inquired with CFO Campbell and Auditor Chiasson if there is
any reason to go into an in-camera session, there were no reasons for an in-
camera session for the meeting. The following motion was then put forward:
Motion
Moved by Councillor Parsons, seconded by Counciilor Gordon MacDonald,
that a recommendation be made to Council to approve and release the:
» CBRM Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,
2024
« CBRM Water Utility Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31,
2024
e Audit Findings Report for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
Motion Carried
Meeting adjourned at 3:12 p.m.

Mayor Cecil P. Clarke
Chair

Christa Dicks

Municipal Clerk
/km
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Year ended March 31, 2024

CAPITAL HIGHLIGHTS

B $23.6m in Capital Project work completed

®  $21.1m - Municipal
B Wastewater treatment plants
Underground infrastructure
Roads and sidewalks
Parks, Trails, Arenas
Fire apparatus
Transit & Fleet
B $2.5m-Water
B Emera Centre transfer $6.9M

B $22.7m additional Capital work in progress
[ ]

$19.8m Wastewater treatment plants

B $700K building/facilities upgrades

W $500k transit (electrification plan/fleet)
B $1.7m roads/culverts/stormwater

OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

m  FIONA recovery and debris management
(approx. $3m in damages for FYE Mar 31/24)

m  Snowmaggedon ($3.85m in costs)

m Ratification of Police Contract/Collective Agreement

POLICY/PLANNING HIGHLIGHTS

®  Transit study ongoing

B Service Exchange MOU
B \Wastewater rate model implemented for 2024-25
B MOQU/Operating lease agreement - Port of Sydney

OPERATING RESULTS

®  CBRM Operating Fund surplus $102k
B Water Utility Operating Fund Surplus $1.96m
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Cape Breton Regional Municipali
Schedule of Operating Fund (Council)

Actuals Budget

2023-24 2023-24 Variance
$ 130,655,688 | $ 130,411,084 | $ 244,604 |4
Total Federal Government == g 3,480,335 3,199,385 280,950 |
tal Federal Government Agencies 823,578 774,672 48,907
tal Provincial Government 2,151,786 2,151,906 (120)
Total Provincial Government Agencies 4,024,736 4,025,373 (837
~Total Services to Other Local Government L 1,144,780 1,171,159 (26,379)
Total Transit 2,102,946 | 2,107,000 (4,054)
Total Environmental Development Services 350,394 250,500 99,894
Total Licenses & Permits 171,701 148,500 23,201
Total Fines & Fees - 878,056 | 11,310 (33,255)
Total Rentals 513,192 3,277 (10,085)]
| Total Concessions & Franchises 1 1,112,325 795,500 316,825
Total Interest ik 2,474,487 | 1,515,000 959,487
Total Finance Revenue 39,150 35,000 4,150
| Solid Waste Revenue ) [ 3,225,955 3,010,000 215,955
& Cultural Service Programs 1,529,609 1,661,500 (131,891)
- - 5,050,540 5,050,540 — =
15,777,701 15,835,838 (58,137)
nal Transfers 274,920 418,000 (143,080)
Total Extraordinary Revenue (Disaster Recovery) 2,967,680 - 2,967,680
Total Revenue s 178,749,559 | $ 173,995,545 | $ 4,754,014
WS R e ——— Actuals | Budget e f
Expenditures AN 2023-24 2023-24 Variance
Legislative — s 1,532 461 | $ 1,629,933 | $ 97,472
Administration - 421,810 462,452 40,642
Finance 2,893,802 3,419,886 526,084 |9
Legal - 2,589,003 2,717,266 | 128,263
Human Resources - 1,261,555 1,487 476 225,921
Technology & Communications 58 | 4,187,985 | oz6 ¥
Municipal Clerk 17 576,707 ¥
Fiscal Services __m 35,277,022 33,986,180
Police Services 27,712,233 30,500,486
| Fire Services (Incl EMO) 19,517,450 18,875,742 (641,708)
| Engineering & Public Works _— ) [ 64,402,336 658,165,336 | (6,237,000) 4
| Planning . 3,189,899 3,589,859 | 399,960
| Facilities: Centre 200 & Arenas 5,912,229 1 *
Parks & Grounds 3,250,173 3,3 8 | 2 &8
Buildings 3,598,592 3,611,363 | 12,771
Recreation 2,806,014 3,056,495 150,481
Total Expenditures R - 178,647,657 | $ 173,995,545 | & (4,652.112)
Surplus / (Deficit) $ 101,202




Revenues Tax Revenue 2k Achuls|_20asmudget]  varanc
Taxes on Assessment
Residential Tax 89,242,691 89,598,350 (355,659)
Exceeded Bud get Commercial Tax 32,639,403 32,543,481 95,922 |
Resource Tax 1,596,823 1,589,858 6,965
$4 754 014* Commercial Area Rates (Fire/Sewer-Bylaw) 1,448,360 1,519,395 (71,035)
y y Total Taxes on Assessment 124,927,277 125,251,084 (323,807)
$1’ 786’334 Bell 407,751 438,000 (30,249)
excluding Disaster recovery Wind Turbine 221,257 222,000 (743) = Deed Transfer Tax
Deed Transfer Tax 5,099,404 4,500,000 599,404 $ 6 0 0 kl
Total Tax Revenue 130,655,689 130,411,084 244,605 >
[ Actuals Budget
2023-24 2023-24 Variance
Revenue —
‘Total Taxes $ 130,655,688 | $ 130,411,084 | 3C 244,604
Total Federal Government 3,480,335 3,199,385 ‘:?8'079’5’04
Total Federal Government Agencies 823,578 774,672 48,907
Total Provincial Government 2,151,786 2,151,906 ~(120)]
Total Provincial Government Agencies 4,024,736 4,025,373 (637)
Total Services to Other Local Government 1,144,780 1,171,159 (26,379)
Total Transit 2,102,946 2,107,000 (4,054))
Total Environmental Development Services It 350,384 250,500 99,894
171,701 148,500 23,201
878,056 911,310 (33,255)
Total Rentals 513,192 523,277 (10,085)
Total Concessions & Franchises 1,112,325 795,500 | 316,825,
| Total Interest 2,474,487 1,515,000 959,487 Includes bank interest $800k
Total Finance Revenue 39,150 35,000 — %4, 15
Total Solid Waste Revenue 3,225,955 3,010,000 215,955
Total Recreation & Cultural Service Programs 1,629,609 1,661,500 (131,891)
Total Water Utility Charges 5,050,540 5,050,540 -
| Total Unconditional Transfers 15,777,701 15,835,838 (58,137)
Total Conditional Transfers 274,920 418,000 (143,080)
Total Extraordinary Revenue (Disaster Recovery) 2,967,680 - 2,967,680 "*‘
Total Revenue N $ 178,749,669 | $ 173,995,646 |$ 4,764,014




Expenditures

Over budget
$4,652,112

Fiona &
Snowmaggedon

- related costs -
$6.285m

$534k

Vehicle repairs

Actuals Budget

Expenditures 2023-24 2023-24  Variance

Legislative 1,532,461 | § 1,629,933 | § 97,472
 Administration 421,810 462,452 40,642

Finance 2,893,802 3,419,886 526,084 | 3¢

Legal 2,589,003 2,717,266 | 128,263

Human Resources 1,261,555 1,487 476 225921

Technology & Communications 3,731,959 4,187,985 456,026 |3
| Municipal Clerk 451,117 576,707 125,590 | o

Fiscal Senvices 35,277,022 33,986,180 (1,290,842)

Palice Services 27,712,233 30,500,486 2,788,253 *

Fire Senvices (Incl EMO) 19,517,450 18,875,742 M*

Engineering & Public Works 64,402,336 | 58,165,336 (_@.237,0@;*

Planning 3,189,889 | 3,589,859 | 399,960

Facilities: Centre 200 & Arenas 5,912,229 | 4,408,504 (1.502,725)]*

Parks & Grounds 3,250,173 | 3,318,875 68,702

Buidings 3,598,592 | 3,611,363 12,771

Recrealion 2,906,014 3,056,495 150,481
| Total Expenditures 178,647,657 § 173,995,545 | § (4,662,112)

Department Actuals Budget| Variance Fiona iggedon Net Variance
Engineering and Admin 5,332,614 5,366,372 33,758 - - 33,758
Divisional Operations | 21977387 [ 10,689,431 | (2,287,956) (394,563) (2,964,718)| 1,071,325
Solid Waste [ 18,567,365 [ 15,867,558 | (2,699,807)  (2,041,854) = (657,953)
Fleet i 6,306,353 [ 4909477 | (1,486,876) - (873,908) (612,968)
Transit [ 8547112 [ 8,555,620 8,508 . . 2,508
Waste Water [ 3581505 3,776,878 1@% (10,644) - 206,017
Depariment Totals 64,402,336 58,165,336 @.237,000 (2,447,061) (3,838,626) 48,687

Nearly all departments reported lower than budgeted expenses.




Comparison by Expenditure

Actual to Budget

Expenditures (Excluding Fiona, Snowmaggedon)

10

$172,235,944

$

173,995,545 -§

1,759,601

$172,235,944 | § 164,930,889

] Actuals -] Budget - 5 CY Actual PY Actual
Expenditures 2023/24 2023/24 Varlance 2022123 Variance
\Wages and Benefits, Net of Cost Recovery/Employment Grants *S 73,701,975 | | $ 78,587,451 | (4885476) § 73,701975 |$ 72505247 |§ 1,196,727
|| 20845056 20,874,429 | (29,373) 20845056 | 20791257 | 53,798
* 22,202 675 21,608,609 | 594,086 22,202,675 20,492,720 1,709,955
N 10,310,499 [ | 10,790,464 (479,965) 10,310498 | 10,087,243 | 223,256 |
7,076,391 7,076,384 7 7,076,391 7,076,391 - |
B,351,563 || 7,243,763 1,107,800 ~ 8351,663 | 8,238,840 112,723 |
Operational Equipment/ Materials/ Supplies/ Tools/ Uniforms/ Clothing [ 6,627,502 6,166,724 | 460,778 @l = 6,627,502 6,554,505 72,897
 Grants to Organizations _mmp || 4323281| 4438860  (115379) 4323281 | 4,396,994 (73713)
Heat/ Electricall Water [ o8 3886283 || 3,626,740 | 259,543 |l 3,886,283 3,269,068 | 617,215
Street Lights ] | 2,629,159 2,400,800 228,359 2,629,159 2,355,685 | 273,474 |
Building Mainentance/ Repair/ Rental *72[1?4,724 1,781,082 393,642 2,174,724 | 1,772,085 402,640
Insurance ; —— 1,984,365 2,080,000 (95,635) 1,984,365 1,726,504 | 257,861
Office/ Computer Supplies/ Equipment B 1617482 [ | 1,774,176 | (156,694) 1,617,482 1,593,602 | 23,879
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes/ Receivables/DUP 3 * 1,863,626 820,000 1,043,626 1,863,626 221,440 | 1,642,186
Telephone/ Communication Equipment 843,908 882,953 (39,045) 843,908 789,540 | 54,368
Cost Recovery (852,041) (861,257)| 9,216 (852,041) (963,727)| 111,686
Security 623,614 | 504,700 118,914 623,614 463,647 159,867
Training/ Education/ Travell Conferences/ Meetings [ 923,108 1,148,464 | 923,106 862,565 | 60,541
Licenses/ Pemits/ Easements al | | 609865 661,834 609,665 490,447 | 118,217
Community Events - 367,258 501,000 367,258 319,586 | 47,672
Cost of Sales 890,611 405,000 485611 890,611 511,130 379,481
| Advertising/ Promotion - o 336,931 326,700 10,231 336,931 238,831 98,099
Postage/ Courier i 199,060 224,300 (25,240) 198,060 227,746 (28,686)
Professional Membership Dues/ Fees/ Subscriptions | 189,468 192,568 (3,101) 189,468 | 179,837 | 9,631
Low Income Rebale 509,786 740,000 (230214) 509,786 729,708 | (219,923)
_FIONA = 2,561,423 | = 2561423 @ 2561423 | 7216928 |  (4655505)
 SNOWMAGGEDON 3,850,291 | | - 3,850,291 3,850,291 - 3,850,291
Total Expenditures $178,647,657 | | $173,995,545 | § 4,652,112 [l $ 178,647,657 | $ 172,147,817 | § 6,499,840

$ 7,305,055




Transportation
Services
General .
Government — * Trans
Services OF ‘ ~rinterest Allocations (short term/long term)
~rAllowance for Uncc ble Taxes
“rAllowance for Uncollectible Receivables
~rinterest Allocations (short term/long term) Environmental
FrAssessment Services Health
—~
Protective _< Recreation &
Services Culture 2
pection Services * Parks & Grounds
interest Allocations (short term/long term) ~nterest Allocations (short term/long term)
L C |
Public Health 3
Environmental 1’:’ We:fa":
ucationa P e e o
Development et . ;
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PSAB
Presentation

Step 2: Report annual surplus as transfer to operating reserve.

le. Operating surplus

Debenture Principal Repayments
- ; Amortization of Bond Discount
Financing & Transfers - )
- Transfers to Special Reserve Fund
Transfers to Capital Fund

le. J-Class Road
Contribution

2024 2023
Annual Surplus, Council Format Y 101,902 |- 715,389
Surplus transfer to operating reserve “  (101,902) 715,389
Annual Surplus, FRAM N ;,> -

12



FRAM

PSAB
Presentation

-

Legislative Requirements vs GAAP

m There is no acceptable substitute for “generally accepted accounting principles”.

m However, since the application of such principles will not always produce the
requirements of particular legislation, it may be necessary to meet the latter through

specially designed statements and reports.

/ CBRM (FRAM)

Accrued debenture interest

Vacation and sick benefit accrual

Asset Retirement Obligation

= PSAB: Meets definition of liability and
must be accrued.

{ FRAM: Not required under legislation

\

13

WATER UTILITY (UARB)

Capital Contributions

« PSAB: Reported as revenue when
received

« UARB: Deferred and amortized on the
basis of the funded asset

Depreciation

= PSAB: Expense

* UARB: Depreciation Reserve

~N

/




PSAB '
Presentation

CBRIM Operating ERAN
Ta o AV 8
(Council)

Step 3: Adjust accruals recognized under PSAB.

Pg. 53 Cape Breton Reglonal Municipality
o © © <Scheduls of Operating Fund and Change in Fund Balance
For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unaudted)
2024 2023
REVENUES
‘ { 2024 2023 Taxes H 130855688 § 119,087.257
1 Granls in beu of laxes 10,480,435 9,396,051
PSAB ADJUSTMENTS | Services provided to other gavemments 918,409 1,145,521
v T ST Sales of services 4805946 4172300
Decrease (increase) in Landfill closure liability 56,294,281 Revenue from own sources 12,815,028 11,826,538
A = AT = Uncongltional transfers from other
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest (357,039) - govemments 15,777,701 15,851,679
: : % e = fers fiom othar 589 600,
Decrease (increase) in accrued sick benefits (474,285) (1,694,156) g:’:“a‘;’?}‘::’::vmel;m fom et gavemmans ;;;gg:: ;;ﬁgg
Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation entitlements (700,453) 2,540,168 il 112303053
EXPENSES
( Prtactve e oo si7orom
1ol €3 x ) 3
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (PSAB) (1,531,777)| 57,140,293 N i L ot
Environmental health services 22,033,680 (34,841,492)
Public health and weltare services 3,465,650 2721969
Environmental davelopment services 1,182,880 1226578
Recreation and cultural senices 12,978,758 11,609,926
Educational servicas 16,530,308 15,534 623
LEEIFEH] 710,187,967
“Entess o fevenues over erpenses belore (he folowing 9,000,933 62,115,056
PSAB FUND BALANCE COMPRISED OF: 2024 2023 FINANCING AND TRANSFERS
7 T Debenture and tenm fuen principal
instaiments ~ (8,865,065 (8,506.443)
- Transle: 10,4 588,
Accrued Interest (357,039) TS Srackl It o ) Giagsn 3,588,200
t - of band discount (60,880) (57.520)
Sick benefit accrual (2,552,195) (2,077,910) - e
Vacation accrual (3'273'061] {2’572'508‘ CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - 1531,777) 57,140,293
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR (4.650,518) (61,790, 811)
| (6,182,295) \ (4,650,518] TN CRLANCE, END OF YERR S (6182295 5 [650518)

14



Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Capital Fund

CBRM'’s Capital fund represents the Municipality’s investments in capital assets.

* The fund balance increases forthe following:
= Grants received for capital projects, such as ICIP, and other outside funding contributions.

»  Monies transferred from our own funds, such as capital out of operating, gas tax reserves, capital
reserves.

* Repayment of debentures.
+ As ARO obligations are no longer municipal responsibility (ie. Sale of property to a 3" party).

« The fund decreases for depreciation, as well as the addition of any newly recognized asset retirement
obligations under the new accounting standard.

15



Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Capital Fund

Qo Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Capital Fund and Change in Fund Balance
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unaudited)
2024 2023
REVENUES 4
Capital grants Emera $ 14240868 5 18220203
Contributed assets Centre © o . 6923900 -
T N 21,189,768 18,220,293
EXPENSES
General govemment services 611,728 945,054
Protective services 1,763,479 1,573,670
Transparialion services 10,114,413 13,718,084
Environmental health services 4,389 628 33,747 977
Recraation and cultural services 1,912,729 1,668,250
Planning and development services 807,449 762,237
19,599,426 52,415,272
Excess of revenues over expenses before the following 1,570,342 (34,194,979)
FINANCING AND TRANSFERS
Transfer from reserve funds 16,997,847 16,963,712
Transfer from general operating fund 884,719 -
Transfer from waler operating fund Cming) 650,000
Debenture and term loan principal insialments = ©,886,06 8.506,443
27,418,631

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

26,120,155

st_mma @074.628)
283,621,765 201,606,589

§ 312,610,738

$ 283,621,765

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR =

16

Contributions from Provincial/Federal
Governments and other sources
$10.3M - ICIP (Wastewater)
$2.5M Charlotte St. Redevelopment
$508K - EV Bus Maintenance Facility
$425K - PTAP/ATAP (Transit)
$461K -Other community infrastructure

Depreciation of assets & initial recognition of
ARO Liabilities

$17.0M Transfer from gas
tax/capital reserves
$885K capital out of operating
(emergency purchase - blowers)

Debt Repayments during fiscal year




Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Capital, Funding & Debt

Budgeted

CBRM Capital Program 2023/24 Budget Cost Funding Borrowing | Borrowing |  Variance
Land and buildings §7100000|§ 8937 |S 21248|% 629489 | 2,100,000 | § (1.470,511)
Arenas 1250000 | 7029550 700762 1,927 197
Fire Equipment/Apparatus 600,000 836,421 103,193 73328 600,000 133208
Streets and Sidewalks 14950000 | 11975466 | 6,663,102 5312364 | 3153333 | 2,159,031
Fleet Replacement 1,500,000 1,762,755 873,908 888,848 850,000 38848
Waste Water/Storm Water 35,773,310 914321 887,000 730 - 2731
Parks & Grounds 1910000 | 2565435  2,017469 547,966 | 930,000 | (382034
Active Transportation
Transit 1800000 |  21mE37| 117212 1047426 |  906300| 141,12
Tech Upgrades 340,000
Waterfront Development 1,545,000
Total $68,768,310 | § 28100523 | § 18,891,954 ('3,208,559 ‘} 8539633 |5 668,936

Debt Repaid -$ 8,886,060

New Debt S

Net Increase in Total Debt

$

9,208,569
322,509 g i

17

Pg. 48 Qoo

Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Long-term Debt
For e year ended March 31, 2024

Temm  Inleres! Balance Balance
(years) rale-% Malures March 3123 Issued Redeemed March 3124
General Fund
MFC.
33-B-1 10 0.000-3614 2023 468,265 468,265 -
34-841 10 12003180 2024 2,660,000 1,330,000 1,330,000
35-A-1 10-20 1.040-3449 2030 2,280,000 560,000 1,720,000
36-A-1 10 1.150-2506 2026 2,497 600 624,400 1,873,200
37-A41 10 17343073 2027 4,137,000 827,400 3,300,600
38-A-1 10 2.490-3.389 2023 7,184,999 1,197,500 5,987 499
FCM-1 10 2250 2028 600,000 100,000 500,000
39-A1 10 2015-2561 2029 7,175,000 - 1,025,000 6,150,000
40-A1 10 0.400-2376 2031 7,927,326 - 880,814 7,046,512
41-A1 10 0.500-2259 2031 10,020,240 . 1,113,360 8,906,880
42-8-1 10 3e47-4177 2032 7,593,205 - 759321 6,833,884
43-B-1 1015 5460-5463 2033 8,887,057 - RiTn
52543635 8,887,057 8,886, 52,544,632
Long Term Debt - Capital Projects 2023/24 2022/23
Current Long Term Debt, Financial Statements 52,544,632 52,543,635
Short term borrowing (21/22) capital projects) - 8,887,057
Short term borrowing (21/23)_c;|ital projects) | 8,073,100 | 8,073,100
short term borrowing (23/24 capital projects) 9,208,569
Balance of Total Debt $ 69,826,301 | § 69,503,792
Change in Total Debt &% 322,509 ™




Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Reserve Fund

CBRM'’s Reserve fund represents:

* Prior year surpluses reserved for operating or other special purpose
» (Capital grants received, but not yet spent
Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Pg. 58 Schedule of Reserve Funds and Change in Fund Balance
(= For the year ended March 31, 2024 - : ;
(Unaudited) « Interest earned during reporting period.

» Sale of property required to be placed in reserve (MGA)

2024 2023 + Grants include advances on infrastructure funding,
REVENUES and federal gas tax allotment.
Investment income $ 1307267 3 789,238
Sale of properties 179,979 329,815
Granis 7,386,868 10,720,853

Transfers from operating fund include:

8,874,114 11,840,556
* Planned transfers
FINANCINIG AND TRANHSFEnFJ!Sd 10051 — « Unspent program funding (sustainability, studies, etc)
Transfer from operaling fun: X 589, 1. .
Transfer o capital funds (16997.847)  (16.963.712) Election reserve transfer
(16,287,796)  ~(20,552,912) « Taxsale surplus
s « Annual C200 CIF allocation
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE {7,413,682) 8.712,356) _
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 52,455,283 61,167,639 = Transfer to capital fund is gas tax and capital reserve
ing during fiscal year.
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR C__§ 45041601 > § 52,455283 Rpenging g Y
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CAPE BRETON

REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY

| CEBRMV
(i) Water
Y L/eiiiry

CBRM Water Utility

Operating, Capital and
Reserve Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2024

19



Cape Breton Regional Municipali
Water Utility - Operating Fund

Water Utility Consolidated (UARB)

Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Pg. 63 Qo

Statement of Financial Activities — Operating Fund

For the year ended March 31, 2024

=

2024 2023
Budget Actual Actusl
(Unaudied)
OPERATING REVENUES
Melered sales § 19218619 $ 20520805 $ 19322036
Pubiic fire protection 7.076,391 7,076,391 7,076,391
Consumer's interest 350,000 960,113 769,932
Service conneclions 66,000 1.821 230,693
26,711,010 28,565,230 27,399,052
OPERATING EXPENSES
Source of supply 553,667 443,065 502,819
Power and pumping 2,042,040 1,626,724 1,820,919
Waler trealment 5052816 5,961,827 4,967 373
Transmission and distribution 5,059,739 5244067 5,155,939
Administration and general 4,157,287 3563,418 3206353
Depreciation 3942595 3,666,582 3,706,504
Taxes 2061214 1,981,992 1,898,230
22,869,358 22 487,685 21,257,537
Excess of operaling revenues over expenses
before the following 3841852 6,077,545 6,141,515
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Amartization of deferred capital conlributions 3 — 208502
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Debt charges
Provision for principal repayment 3,687,972 3,564,500 3,564 500
Interest 880,485 650,992 1,041,977
Amoriization of debt discounts = 20277 24540
Bark fees/charges 150,000 27,360 25,603
Capital expendilures oul of operations 150,000 150,000 1,250,000
4 868,457 ﬂ : 5,905,620
'CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE § (1,026.805) . 1.962.918 3 533397

Change in fund balance (UARB)
- Amort. Of Deferred Contributions
= Change in Fund Balance (PSAB) $1,664,416

$1,962,918
(298.,502)
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CBRM Consolidated (PSAB)

Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Pg. 54 /ater Utility Operating Fund and Change in Fund Balance
For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unaudited)
2024 2023
OPERATING REVENUES
Melered sales $ 20520805 $ 19322036
Public fire protection 7.076,391 7.076.391
Consumer’s interest 317,748 769,932
27,914,944 27,168,359
‘OPERATING EXPENSES

Source of supply 443,065 502818
Powier and pumping 1,626,734 1,820,919
‘Water treatment 5,961,827 4967373
Transmission and distribution 4,594 067 4506939
‘Administration and general 3,563,418 3,206,353
Taxes 1,981,992 1,896,230
18,171,103 16,900,633
Excess of revenues over expenses before the following 9,743,841 10,267,726

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Miscelianeous 650,286 230693

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Interest on debentures 650,992 1,041977
Ameorlization of debl discounts 20278 24539
__ Other 27,360 25,605
" Transfer lo waler capital fund 7,381,082 8,521,404
Transfer lo general-capital fund 650,000 650,000
- A 8,729,712 10,263,525
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE T —a( 1664415 735694
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR TTavEn 6914027
B FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR § 8814236 §  7.149821

Difference between 2 reporting models is in
how amortization of deferred contribution of
$298,502 is reported.



Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Water Utility Change in Fund Balance - Operating Fund

Water Utility Consolidated (UARB)

Pe.64 . ) o o .Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility
Statement of Operating Fund Surplus (Deficit)

Forthe year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
SURPLUS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR § 3,185,376 § 26319719
Change in fund balance 1,962,918 533,397

SURPLUS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR ( H 5,12&294\ § 3,165,376

Difference in fund balance

due to the accounting treatment for
previously recognized capital contributions
(PSAB), net of accumulated amortized
contributions to date (UARB).
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CBRM Consolidated (PSAB)

Cape Breton Regional Mun!ctﬁllty

Pg. 54

Schedule of Water Utility Operating Fund and Change in Fund Bafance
For the year ended M’u’)l 31, 2024
(Unaudited)
G
2024 2023
OPERATING REVENUES
Melered sales § 20,520,805 § 19322036
Public fira protection 7.076,391 7.076.3H1
Consumer's interest 317,748 769,932
27,914,844 27,168,350
OPERATING EXPENSES

Source of supply 443,065 502818
Power and pumping 1,626,734 1,820,918
Waler treatment 5,961,827 4,967,373
Transmission and distribulion 4,594,067 4,506,939
Administration and general 3,563,418 3,206,353
Tares 1,981,992 1.896.230
18,171,103 16,200,633
Excess of revenues over expenses before the lollowing 59,743,841 10,267,726

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Miscellaneous 650,286 230,693

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Inlerest on debentures 650,992 1,041,977
Amortization of debt discaunts 20,278 24,539
Other 27,360 25,605
Transfer lo waler capital fund 7.381,082 8,521,404
Transier lo general capital fund 650,000 650,000
8729712 10263 525
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 1,664,415 234,894
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,149,821 6,914,027
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR ( 5 BB14236 )5 7140820




Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Water Utility Change in Fund Balance - Capital Fund

Water Utility Consolidated (UARB)

Statement of Investment in Capital Assets

CBRM Consolidated (PSAB)

Cape Breton Regional Municipality

5 For the year ended March 31, 2024 Pg. 56 dyle of Water Utility Capital Fund and Change in Fund Balance
it Qo i B, For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unsudited)
2024 2023
2024 2023
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 06,476,427 § 91,661,927
- REVENUES
Term debt retired 3,564,500 3,564,500 Capital grants $ s =
p Total $3,714,500 | . “. jrsteg
Capital oul of operations T 150000 ) 1,260,000 EXPENSES
s Amortization 3,696,928 3,736,304
BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 100,190,927 § 06476427
—Dx ‘ y of over before the following 3,696,928 3,736,304
FINANCING AND TRANSFERS
¥ : A Transfer from waler operating fund 7,381,082 8,521,404
+ Capital Projects funded through depreciation reserve —
« NO New Debt CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5 3,684,154 4,705,100
«  Debt Balance $14,808,000 FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 106,342,731 101,557,631
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR S 110026885  § 106,342,731

Cape Breton Reglonal Municipality Water Utility

Schedula B - Capital Debt Chargea
Pg. 74 2 For e year anded Wach 31, 3024
o
of Mty et Math3), March 31,
line Date Pate % 202 layued Recosmed 2034
I
Feunce
Corporztion
WAt wa  wn
30w w225
A3A 2013
Er) FITI
) w2 am
4 20 2028
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Change in fund balances equal under each standard
except for how amortization/accretion expense on ARO
assets/liabilities is reflected in the schedules under each

reporting framework.




Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Water Utility - Change in Fund Balance - Reserve Fund
Water Utility Consolidated (UARB)

Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

CBRM Consolidated (PSAB)

Pg. 59 Oo-.

Cape Breton Regional Municipality

edule of Water Utility Reserve Funds and Change in Fund Balance

For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unaudited)

2024 2023

REVENUES
Investment income

§ 6,264 L] 4367

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

6,264 4,367

2,052,301 2,047,934

Pg. 69 Oo- Statement of Special Reserve
For the year ended March 31, 2024
2024 2023
Non-shareable Fulure Watershed Sysco
debl capital land waterline
expenditure  expenditure acquisition mainlenance Tolal Total
BALANCE,
BEGINNING
OF YEAR $ 55543 § 939,666 $ 340,848 $ 716245 § 2,052,302 § 2,047,934
Interest on
investments 250 4,260 1,752 6,262 4368
BALANCE, END
OF YEAR $ 55793 5 943,926 § 342,600

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

C § 2058585 > § 2052301
—_—

s ?15,24@ $ 2,052,302

Operating results and fund balances

consistent under both sets of standards.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

24

c Schedule of Port of Sydney Development Corporation Operating Fund and
Change in Fund Balance
(o] For the year ended March 31, 2024
m— Unaudited)
= { )
.
E Budgel 2024 2023
(Unaudited)
(@] REVENUES
o Wharfage and berthage s 708361 s 874881 S 696742
fy Passenger tax 1,480,585 1,624,441 876,697
— e T Evenls 198,800 177,279 89,606
© c Security 336529 378,659 279740
Q_ = Storage and rental 324735 323,799 255 864
B T Craft market 70,500 130,027 67,278
Sundry 4,800 52,260 35,945
&~ o=t ol Government funding : 3.057 144177
c | = 3,133,320 3,570,303 7,446,049
=3 o #= EXPENSES
E © Advertising and promotion 12775 25,308 15,024
E > Bad debls 2,000 : 1752
o Cruise activiies 69,140 40,529 55,222
2a L) Dues and fees 28327 34,893 29226
(O] (@] (@) Events 97,600 55,431 13,562
— Insurance 87,375 74,202 68,004
c O Interest and bank charges 4720 5331 5212
> Miscellaneous 8,610 36,754 16,292
O (b} Office and administration 21,087 14,531 12,034
= ) O Professional fees 25,300 94,589 11,381
w Q o Renl 47,880 52,320 52,320
(<)) ® Repaits and maintenance 276,060 254,060 225119
— Security 227,700 252,402 170,831
o > © Travel 19,500 40,385 21,119
q, om Uliiities 224,520 246,236 223,085
: : \Wages and benefils 622 968 843,032 815895
o G 'g 2136571 2,072,083 1,746,068
epert >‘ = Excess of revenues over expenses before
9 w LL. the folloving 296,749 1,408,220 509,081
m _E Amortization of capital assels (385,405) (307,969) (331,948)
‘l—o o Gain on disposal of assets . 6,500
((h]) b CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE § el Qﬁ@ 374535
=
Q. .g © FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4392613 4,018,078
8 0o ("_C) FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR § 5582,864 § 4392613

o

The Port of Sydney is accountable to
the CBRM for the administration of
their financial affairs and resources,
as they are owned and controlled by
the Municipality.

As such, the PSDC's financial results
are consolidated with CBRM’s own
funds to form the CBRM
KConsoIidated Financial Statements.

Final Year of
Consolidation with

CBRM!!!




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Pg. 34 li‘atad Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
For the year ended March 31, 2024

CBRM CBRW PSDC

Budgel 2024 2023
Operating Fund Operating Fund Operating Fund REVENUES
Capital Fund Capital Fund Tares 5 10411084  § 130855668 S 119,087,257
Grants in ligu of taxes 10,151,336 10,480,435 9,396,051
Reserve Fund Reserve Fund Services provided lo other governments 692,300 919,459 1,145521
Sales of services 4,599,000 4,806,846 4172308
Revenue from own sources 6,072,217 7,564,488 6,875,028
Unconditional transfers from other
govemments 15,835,838 15,777,701 15,851,979
Conddional transfers from other govemments 3,744 926 4,692, 960 4,754,023
Caplital grants % 21,627,736 28,941,146
Waler Utilty revenue 19,634 619 21,488,839 20,322 661
Investment income = 1,313,531 794255
Fort of Sydney Development Corporation 3133320 3,566,346 2,301,872
Contributed assels 3 6,928,900 ~
Gain on sale of properties - 179,979 336,330
Disasler recovery 5 2,967,860 6,213,522
194,574,790 232,970,908 220,191,954
EXPENSES

General govemment services 20,577,512 18,800,258 17,022,224
Prolective services 52473131 51,406,914 49,198,662
Transporialion servicas 42618913 52,989,151 56,957,968
Environmental health services (Nole1) 20,632,633 26423318 (1,003,515,
s Public health and vieliare semvices 2,764,551 3,465,650 2721969
Consolidated (BRM CBRW PSDC Envitonmental development services 136,055 1182080 1226578
Uperating Recreation and cullural services 13,265,898 14,891,487 13278176
: ' Flanning and development sefvices - 807,449 762,237
Results Operaing | Capital | Resenve | Operating |  Capltal | Reserve Educalional services 16530308 16530308 15534623
Port of Sydney Development Corporation 2521976 2,380,052 2078014
Waler Ulility expenses 14,906,708 17,495,843 16,753,009
Change in Fund Balance (4,650,518)| 283,621,765 | 52,455,208 | 7,149,821 | 106342,731|  2,052,301| 4392613 kIR 187,627,685 206,382,310 174439845
il et — ST TS BHENY BN

L A (1530777 28388973 | (7413680)| 1664415] 3684154 6264 ] 1,190,251 [EIATIIETY) ANNUALSURPLUS. : (3 2R
= Bl ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 451,363,996 405,611,987
Fund Balance End of Year (6,182,5)| 302610738 | 4500615 | 8814236 | 11006885 | 2058565 | 5582864 [EESETY ) ACCURUEATED SURPLUS, END OF YeAR 5 TSRS § B
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Other Schedules

Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Lo
Schedule of Remuneration and Reportable Expenses of Council

For the year ended March 34, 2024

Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Remuneration and Reportable Expenses of Senior Staff

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Annual Travel Annual Reporiable
Council Remuneration Expenses  Senior Staft i Exp
D. Bruckschwaiger § 54719 $ 542 M.Betlens $ 11,832 $ =
J. Edwards (Deputy Mayor) $ 6017 § 12046 D Campbel-Ryan s 30545 $ 517
L. Green § 54719 § 4177 ). Campbell $ 132008 $ 4,103
S. Gillespie § 54719 § - C.Dicks S 54,968 $ 1,385
C. MacDonald $ 54719 § 666 K Duming $ 132008 ] 2552
E. MacDonald § - 54719 § 9833 D Evely § - 132008 ] -
G. MacDonald 3 /54719 § 3653 D Kachafanas $ 135231 § 1,572
E. MacMuliin (Deputy Mayor) § 54719 § 407 W MacDonald § . 140,195 ] ALY
A McDougal-Mermill (Mayor) $ 159967 § 39565  J MacKinnon § 187,562 § 14,142
D. O'Quinn § 54719 § 1369 M Ruus $ 116,681 § 5,161
S. Parsons $ 54719 § 1725 M. Seh s 84,866 H 13719
G. Paruch § 54719 $ - M.Walsh § 231049 § 5042
K Tracey § 54719 S 532 R Walsh $ 172605 4 4714

5.2.2(e) Audit Committee Policy:

Review the overall reasonableness of CAQ, Mayor and Council travel and

hospitality expenses.

Amounts also disclosed for senior staff.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Financial Condition Index (Draft)

Indicator Name 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 201920
Reliance on Government Transfers ' 14,0% _ % |
Uncollected Taxes 14.7% 14.4% 14.8%

3 Year Change in Tax Base 1.2% 1.8%

Reliance on Single Business or Institution

Residential Tax Effort

# of Deficits in the Last 5 Years

Liquidity : T T I

Operating Reserve

Debt Service Cost
Outstanding Operating Debt
Undepreciated Assets

Combined Operating & Capital Reserves
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Financial Condition Index (Draft)

Indicator Formula Inputs

Total Government Transfers
Total Revenue

21,699,560
155,380,665

Reliance on Gov't Transfers

The Municipality is not dependent on another
Indicative of the degree of rellance on government transfers to sustain services/programs. level of government to meet its service
obligations.

Uncollected Taxes Taxes Recelvable [net of allowance) 18,393,385 _

Total Taxes Billed 124,927,277

The Municipality is experiencing challenges with

indica -
its tax revenue collection.

e of the degree of difficulty the Municipality is experiencing in its tax revenue collectian.

Current UA - UA 3 years prior 544,175,736
3-Year Change in Tax Base =

s = 5
UA 3 years ago 4,879,153,523 \\k_

The Municipality's tax base is strong to cover the

Is the Municipality's tax base growing at a pace sufficient to sustain services/programs. ¥ :
cost of municipal services and programs.

I on Single Bt /institution Taxable assessment value of largest business/institution 69,688,264 = QD =106 10-1 >15%
Uniform Assessment 5,423,329,259

The Municipality is showing no vulnerability in

Is Municipality dependant on the taxes of a single business/institution? it
this area.
Residential Tax Effort | i Taxes /# dwelling units | 1,859 0% <4% > 6%
| Median Household Income 1 62,400
The Municipality has some flexibility to increase

Helps Council assess the affordabilty of residential taxes in relation to current service levels.
tax rates if required.

Surplus/ Deficit - 4 years ago 11,940
Surplus/ Deficit - 3 years ago - o
# of Deficits in the Last 5 Years Surplus/ Deficit - 2 years ago 4,390,348 Qors
Surplus/ Deficit - 1 year ago 3,912,794
Surplus/ Deficit - Current Year 11,952,928

The Municipality is able to meet its needsin a
balanced manner and maintain a balanced
budger.

Indicative of the municipality's ability to meet its needs in a balanced manner and maintain a balanced budget as an indication of
financial health.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Financial Condition Index (Draft)

Indicator

Set by DMA

Inputs

4years ago
3 years ago
2 years ago
1year ago
Current Year

Years with a Budget Accuracy within +or -
5% in the last five years

5ofs

Indicative of the municipality’s ability to maintain expenditure spending within budget limits

The Municipality consistently maintained
expanditure spending within budget limits

Liquidity I Total Current Assets
| Total Current Liabilities

62,292,644 =
46,175,296

=

AT

Indicative of cash flow cancern by assessing the muricipality’s ability to meat is current abligations.

The result indicates that the Municipality is
somewhat able to meet its neads In a balanced
manner and malntain a balanced budget

Operating Reserve | General Operating Reserve I 14,743,163 = . o384 > 2086 10 20 <10% ity
[ Total Expenses (including debenture payments) | 158,521,543 < ~

[The value of funds set

ned

de for pi

xpected future needs

The Municipality has not set aside sufficlent

funds to help mitigate unfarseen risks or future

Debt Service Cost 24,287,879

Principal/interest on LTD |
Total Own Source Revenue |

needs.
=

. 4 ;

133.681,105
The Municipality has limited flexibility to
Indiciative of the flexibility te Increase borrowing levels for future capital expenditures. dt il e,
increase barrowing.
Total O g Debt 20,543,070
Outstanding Operating Debt = 14.4%
Total Net Taxes & PILT, GIL, Uncon, and Con. Tr 142,465,040

Ind

tive of the severity of operating debt a Municipality Is carrying at year end.

The Municlpality Is carrying operating debt.

Undepreciated Assets | Total NBVY of Capital Assets l
| Total Gross Cost of Capital Assets 1

420,365,062 -
695,850,778

The Municipality Is experiencing less of an

Indicates the remalning useful life of the Municipality's recognized capital assets to assess degree of infrastructure challenges. infrastructure challenge than other
municipalities.
Combined Reserve (Operating & Capital) I Total reseve fund balance ] 45,041,601 -
| Total operating exp (Incl Depreciation) i 173,961,434

Assesses the Mu ipality's long term sustaina ty by measu ng its ability to address both unexpected events or provide flexibility

to address future infrastructure projects by comparing the value of funds held in reserves compared to 1year's operating costs

ing amortization).

(inciu

The Municipality does not appear to have
sufficient reserves needed to address
unexpected events or the flexibllity to address
future projects.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Year Ended March 31, 2024

“After climbing a great hill, one only finds that there are many
more hills to climb.”

Nelson Mandela
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ape Breton Regional Municipality
nsolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2024
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024
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Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financigl St3tements

Cape Breton Regional Municipality (the
“Municipality”) are the responsibility of the Municipality’s management.and have been prepared in compliance

i ing_standards. A summary of the
sfatements. The preparation

The Municipality's management maintains a sysf ontrols desighed to provide reasonabile
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactigns ar&properly guthorized and recorded in compliance with
legistative and regulatory requirements, and refiablé~financial information is available on a timely basis for
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. / ems are monitored and evaluated by

management.

statements and discuss any significant financi
consolidated financial statements.

by the Municipality. The accompanyipg Tndépe
their examination and their opinion ¢

dent Autlitors’ Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of
the Municipslity's conselidated financial statements.

Jennifer Campbell, Chief Fina

33



Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As af March 31, 2024

2024 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) $ 24119415 $ 52,428,301
Taxes receivable (note 4) 18,393,385 16,332,757
Accounts receivable (note 5) 40,822 629 33,868,127
Due from trust fund (note 13) - -
83,435,429 102,629,185
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 6) 38,829,280 37,883,085
Due tfo trust funds (Note 13) - 17,064
Deferred revenue 436,158 682,576
Accrued employee benefits 7,343,717 6,186,993
Asset retirement obligation (note 7} 12,721,266 41,430,768
Capital lease (note 8) 862 486,232
Long-term debt (note 9) 352 632 85,000,433
/ / h 157,064,925 171,687,131
NET DEBT T~/ (73,629,496) (69,057,946)
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets {note 10) 475,386,549 466,939,369
Tangibie capital assets - work in progre 71,944,713 49,265,230
Properties acquired at tax sale 1,685,197 1,685,197
inventory, prepaid expenses and cther Y\““\) e 2,665,631 2,632,146
\\/ 551,582,090 520,421,842

/

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (note 11) L

$ 477,952,504

$ 451,363,996

Contingencies {note 14)

See accompanying notes to congolida cial statements.

34




Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Budget
(Note 19) 2024 2023
REVENUES
Taxes $ 130,411,084 $ 130,655,688 $ 119,087,257
Grants in lieu of taxes 10,151,336 10,480,435 9,386,051
Services provided to other governments 992 360 919,499 1,145,621
Sales of services 4,539,000 4,806,946 4,172,309
Revenue from own sources 6,07 7,564,488 6,875,028
Unconditional transfers from other
governments 165,777,701 15,851,879
Conditional transfers from other governments 4,692 960 4,754,023
Capital grants 21,627,736 28,941,146
Water Utility revenue 1.488,839 20,322,661
Investment income 1,313,531 794,255
Port of Sydney Development Corpoeration 133,320 3,568,346 2,301,872
Contributed assets 6 928,900 -
Gain on sale of properties - 179,979 336,330
Disaster recovery - 2,967,860 6,213,522
194,574,700 232,970,908 220,191,954
EXPENSES
General government services 18,809,258 17,022,224
Protective services 51,406,914 49,198,662
Transportation services 52,989,151 56,957,968
Environmental health services 26,423,318 (1,093,515)
Public health and welfare services 3,465,650 2,721,969
Environmental development services 1,182,880 1,226,578
Recreation and culiural services 14,891,487 13,278,176
Planning and development services 807,449 762,237
Educational services 16,530,308 15,534,623
Port of Sydney Development/Corporation 2,380,052 2,078,014
Water Utility expenses 5,708 17,495,843 16,753,009
“’ 187 627,685 206,382,310 174,439,945
ANNUAL SURPLUS 6,947.105 $ 26,588,598 45,752,008
ACCUMULATED SUR US@W\’E R 451,363,896 405,611,987
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS,ENDOFYEAR /| | $ $477,952,594  $ 451,363,996

See accompanying notes o mnWtatements.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Debt
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Budget
{Note 19) 2024 2023
ANNUAL SURPLUS $ 6,947,105 $ 26,588,598 $ 45752,009

Tangible capital assets

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (68,768,310) (31,223,818)

(31,820,918}

Proceeds on disposal of tangibie capital assets - 179,979 336,330
Ameortization of tangible capital assets 22,778,736 20,882,777
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (179,879) {336,330}

(8,447,180) (10,938,141}

Other non-financial assets
Increase in work in progress
Increase in inventory, prepaid expenses

79,483)

(23,384,586)

and other m - 485 (472,877)

/ /68,76 (22,712,968) {23,857,463)

DECREASE (INCREASE) IN NET DEBT $ [84,521,2¢5) (4,571,550) 10,956,405
NET DEBT, BEGINNING OF YEAR (69,057,946) (80,014,351)
NET DEBT, END OF YEAR T~$ (73.629,496) § (69.057,946)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finandi
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annuat Surplus $ 26,588,598 $ 45,752,009
ltems not involving cash
Amortization of tangible capital assets 22,776,736 20,882,777
Contributed assets (6,928,900) -
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets {(179,979) {336,330)
Change in non-cash working capital
Taxes receivable (2,060,628) 738,632
Accounts receivable (7,054,502) (12,224,471)
inventory, prepaid expenses and other (33,485) (472,877)
Accounts payable and accrued fiabilities and acop . 946,225 5,688,524
Solid waste management facilities liability ' - {56,294,281)
Deferred revenue 6/418) 368,487
Accrued employee benefits 1,186,724 (893,484)
Asset retirement obligation e 1,290,498 41,430,768
U 36,254,869 44,640,754
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase} in due from trust fund {17,064) 754,881
Issuance of long-term debt 12,387,057 12,165,705
Principal payments on fong-term debt (30,034,858) (30,727,742)
Repayment of capital lease S TT— (456.898) (127.111)

(18,121,763}

=

4

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

(17,934,267}

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (23,942,488) (31,252 524)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital.assets 179,979 336,330

Increase in work in progress (22,679,483) (23,384,586)

/ m \‘ 2 / (46,441,992) (54,300,780)

DECREASE IN CASH AND CAgH E%ENTS (28,308,386) (27,594,293)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, INNING.OF YEAR 52,428,301 80,022,584
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALCENTS, END-QF YEAR_ / $ 24119415 $ 52,428,301

"~

SUPPLEMENTAL CAS!

FLQW INFORMATIO

See accompanying notes to consolidated ﬁna. al staterents.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING FOLICY

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c}

Revenue

Effective April 1, 2023, the Municipality adopted the Public Sector Account Board's {(PSAB) new
standard for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of revenue under PS 3400 Revenue. The
new standard establishes when to recognize and how to measure revenue, and provides the related
financial statement presentation and disclosure requirg

enfs. Pursuant to these recommendations, the
change was applied prospectively, and prior periods Have plot been restated.

There was no material impact on the consolidated financial™s
of the new accounting recommendations.

atements from the prospective application

Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared, in all material respe i ? nce with Canadian public sector accounting
standards. )

Basis of consolidation

rsified entity that provides a wide range of services to
purposes, the Municipality’s operations and activities are
sentation is in accordance with the Provincial Financial

th special regulations, restrictions or limitations. Municipality

services are provided by depa and their activity is reported in these funds. The services
provided by these departments are as follows:
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(€) Segment information {continued)

General government services

This segment is responsible for the overall local government administration and delivery of public health
and welfare services. [ts tasks inciude direction for Municipality services, such as planning,
engineering, finance, and information technology in ad ce o the Municipal Government Act.

Port of Sydney Development Corporation

This segment is responsible for the operations 0
Sydney Development Corporation.

yeney, through its subsidiary Port of

Protective services

This segment is primarily responsible f@
residents.

giice, firt prgtection and bylaw administration for its

Transportation services

The Municipality is responsible for
within its jurisdiction.

4l roads, sidewalks and street lights

Environmental health services

d operations of waste, sewer and stormwater
tasks include the provision of waste collection,
owH and contracted workforces.

ing and offering recreation opportunities and activities to the
intaining and assisting recreational facilities within the

This segment is resp%bje\k; om
Municipality's residents, speciafizj

This segmen&e
subdivision applicati

Educational services

This segment is responsible for the Zollection of education rates on behalf of the Province of Nova
Scotia.

Water Utilit

This segment manages water treatiment and distribution facilities and services within the Municipality
and includes activiies such as plant operation and pumping, water freatment, transmission and
distribution.

39



Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

)

(h

(i

School boards

The assets, liabilities, taxation and other revenues and expenses with respect to the operations of the
school boards are not reflected in these consolidated financial statements as they are provincial
government entities.

School hoards in Nova Scotia were created by the Pr ¢ under provisions in the Education Act, and,
under provincial statute, every municipality is required tg' make a mandatory contribution to its schooi
board. The mandatory contribution is set at the value of the
year, multiplied by the previous year's Uniform /Assessmen
Cape Breten-Victoria Regional School Board

on the assessed value of the taxable prope!

ducation Rate, set by the Province each
Thefunding for this contribution to the
retovered by the-mpunicipality by an area rate levied
and’ business occupanc asséssments and is shown as
finghcial agtivities.

an expense on the consolidated statement

Trust funds

Fund accounting

The resources and operations of the MuFipality._are comprised of the operating, capital and reserve
funds. Transfers between funds arewjecorded/as adjustménis to the appropriate fund bafance.
Supporting schedules to the consolidatedﬂjn\cial tatements are included fo show the financial

activities and change in the b each funi

Basis of accounting

Revenues and expensgs ate recorded on the accryal basis of accounting. The accrual basis of
re eamned and measurable; expenses are recognized as they

are incurred and measurable the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal

Financial instruments
Initial measurement

Financial instruments are measured at fair value when issued or acquired. For financial instruments
subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost, fair value is adjusted by the amount of the related
financing fees and transaction costs. Transaction costs and financing fees relating to financial
instruments that are measured subsequently at fair value are recognized in operations in the year in
which they are incurred.

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payables
and accrued liabitities, due to {from) trust fund and long-term debt.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Subsequent measurement

At each reporting date, the Municipality measures its financial assets and liabilities at cost or amortized
cost (iess impairment in the case of financial assets), except for investments, which must be measured
at fair value. The Municipality uses the effective interest rate method to amortize any premiums,
discounts, transaction fees and financing fees to the statement of revenues and expenses. The
financial instruments measured at amortized cost are astyand cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payables and accrued liabilities, due to (from) tryst fund and long-term debt.

impairment

For financial assets measured at cost or amortized gost, Hie-Municifaiify regularly assesses whether
there are any indications of impairment. If theie~is an indication vf-impaimjtent, and the Municipality
determines that there is a significant adversg change in the expected timihg or amount of future cash
flows from the financial asset, it recognizes s in the statement of operations. Any

reversals of previcusly recognized imp
reversal occurs.

g recognized in operations in the year the

Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that
interest or credit risks arising from fhancial i

A statement of remeasurement gainsand lbeges no
it would not contain any balances or trangaction

Tangible capital assets

he Munigipality is not exposed to significant

en ifchided in these financial statements as

Tangible capital assets acfuireg
of financiat position at cost neg
amalgamation have begn writlg
useful lives at the followin

SHRCE Ql’::legamatio on August 1, 1995 are reported in the statement
e izaflon. All tangible capital assets acquired prior to
/ They are amorlized on a straightdine basis over their estimated

7 \7 Basis Rate

./
General Fund
Buiidings Straight-line 40 years
Equipment Straight-line 5-10 years
Streets Straight-line 50 years
Sidewalks Straight-line 20 years
Traffic lights Straight-line 20 years
Recreation facilities Straight-line 5-40 years
tndustrial parks Straight-line 40 years
Waterfront development Straight-line 50 years
Wharf — Sydney Marine Terminal Straight-line 25 years
Garbage collection and disposal Straight-line 25 years
Sewer collection and disposal Straight-line 50 years
Water fund
Structures and improvements Straight-line 75 years
Equipment Straight-line 5-20 years
Mains Straight-line 75 years
Services and other Straight-line 50 years
Meters Straight-line 20 years
Hydrants Straight-line 80 years
9
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

"

E}

(n)

Basis Rate

Port of Sydney Development Corporation
Equipment and signs Declining balance 20 — 30%
Building Declining balance 5%
Compound Declining balance 5%
Exhibits clining balance 20%
Computer equipment eclining balance 30%

Reserve funds

Certain amounts, as approved by Council of
operating and capital purposes. Transfers fo a
respective fund when approved.

reserve funds for future
are an adjustment to the

Government fransfers

The Municipality recognizes a government trang e when the transfer is authorized and all

eligibility criteria, if any, have been met. A govemn

cbligation that meets the deﬁnitio:/ﬂ‘a*ﬁa ity js recognized
he i

Municipality recognizes revenues ds { bility is settled.
Deferred revenue \%7

Deferred revenue represents user char%pay ent of taxes, and other fees that have been
performed. These amounts will be recognized

adiability. In such circumstances, the

time when services are performad agd/or when earned as long as amounts can be reasonably
estimated, and coflection is reasonably assured.

Port of Sydney Development Corporation revenue recognition

The Port of Sydney Development Corporation recognizes revenue from the commercial operations of
the Port of Sydney is recognized when the services are provided and the customer takes ownership and
assumes risk of loss, collection of the relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists and the sales price is fixed or determinable. Amounts received in advance of the
provision of services are recorded as deferred revenue,

10
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

()]

(@

Port of Sydney Development Corporation revenue recognition (continued

Restricted contributions for the purchase of capital assets are recognized in the year in which the capital
assets have been purchased and all liabilities relating to the asset have been cleared. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can
be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Employee future benefifs

Employees of the Municipality participate in the/Publ ervice Superannuation Plan ("PSSP), a

nformity with Canadian generally accepted
and assumptions that affect the reported

Amonrtization is based on the estimat

us i ital assets.
Taxes, rates and other receivables are~stated aftdr evaluation as to their collectability and an

appropriate alfowance for dou| counts is provided where considered necessary.

rement uncertainty, and the effect on the financiat
and assumptions in future years could be material. These

statements of changes in st
f ically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are

estimates and assu

unicipality to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible
capital asset (or component thereof)/ the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has
occurred, it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up, and a reasonable estimate of the
amount can be made. The best estimate of the liability includes all costs directly attributable to asset
retirement activities, based on information avaitable at March 31, 2024. The best estimate of an asset
retirement obligation incorporates a present value technique, when the cash fiows required o settie or
otherwise extinguish an asset retirement obligation are expected to occur over extended future periods.

11
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(q) Asset retirement obiigation {continued)

When a liability for an asset retirement obligation is initially recognized, a corresponding asset
retirement cost is capitalized to the carrying amount of the related tangible capital asset (or component
thereof). The asset retirement cost is amortized over the useful life of the related asset. For asset
retirement obligations associated with tangible capital assefs no longer in productive use, the
Municipality recognizes an expense of the same amount ag'the liability.

At each financial reporting date, the Municipaiity/ revi the carrying amount of the lability. The

Municipality recognizes period-to-period changes Ao th to the passage of time as accretion
expense. Changes to the liability arising from r , the amount of the original
estimate of undiscounted cash fiows or the digco increase or decrease fo

it is seftled or otherwise extinguished.
the reported liability when they are made.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

7 2024 2023

Operating funds $ (18,155,731} $ 11,301,878

Reserves funds 56,993,947 74 487 157

Capital funds (16,900,708} (34,397,172)
N <

Port of Sydney Development C?maﬁm\ 2,181,807 1,036,438

/7~ T
4, TAXES RECEIVABLE w (,—————/

$ 24,119,415 $ 52,428,301

2024 2023
Gross taxes receivabje, beginmi f year \? $ 18,568,304 $ 20,147,280
Current year's levy prom 125,148,533 143,370,498
Subtotal 143,717,837 133,517,778
Less
Current year's coliectio 122,678,119 113,380,421
Reduced taxes 509,786 729,709
Allowance (358,849) 838,344
Gross taxes receivable, end of year 20,988,781 18,569,304
L.ess
Allowance for uncotfectible taxes 2,595,396 2,236,647
Taxes receivable, net $ 18,393,385 $ 16,332,757

12
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2024 2023

Federal government $ 9,075,915 $ 11,269,662
Provinciat government 19,638,407 10,689,564
Due from general pubtic 3,670,914 2,556,768
Water rates receivable N 11,324,255 10,830,329
43,709,491 35,336,323

Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Operating 598,638
Water rates 869,558
1,468,196

7 7 7 J] § 40922629 § 33866127

\‘\\/

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

A T~/ 2024 2023

Trade accounts payable $ 28,578,312 $ 27,743,971
Payrolt and related 410,681 1,770,039
Accrued liabilities 5,821,240 5,069,883
Tax sale frust 4,019,057 3,299,172
/ 7N \ /’ $ 38829290 $ 37,883,065

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLAGA S
(a) Solid Waste Management Fatiit]
The Nova Scotia Envir

mental Pri tion
term maintenance ofAandfitr Sitgs: requirgment

landfill operated by the Counily o e Brgton, No. 11 landfill in Giace Bay, the Louisbourg iandfill, New
Waterford fandfill operated near Scotcht and seven other small sites in Dominion, Sydney Mines and
Glace Bay.

Two of the larger tandfills, Sydney landfill and the No. 11 landfill in Glace Bay were considered properly
closed in the 1990's, however, there are still 4 somewhat major landfills and several small sites that are
considered closed, but still require varying degrees of monitoring and/or closure activities as per the
reguiations.

Activities required for these sites vary and include but are not limited to groundwater monitoring, well
installation and monitoring, site delineation, site security, landfil gas delineation, leachate guality monitoring
and possible treatment, site capping and general site tidiness.

13

45



Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
{a) Solid Waste Management Facilities Liabilities (continued}

The assumed estimated cost for proper monitoring, planning, closure and post closure activities for these
sites is $35,374,959 which have been discounted to the present vaiue using a discount rate of 4.00% per
annum. The estimate is based on the costs per hectare associated with the ciosure of the Sydney fandfill
extrapolated over remaining hectares to be closed, adjusted for inflationary considerations and discounted to
current values. Liability is expected to be {ulfilied over the plext 38 years.

(b} Asbestos cbligation

an obligation to eliminate any environmental 3 ving and disposing of creosote treated lumber.
Estimated costs have been discounted to the predent valyé using a discount rate of 4.00% per annum. The

refrigerant materials. } : igtounted to the present value using a discount rate of
4.00% per annum. ahsition and recoghition of asset retirement obligations invoived an accompanying
increase to the bui
years.

{e) Fueltanks

The municipality owns and operates Severgl buildings that contain above and underground tanks that falt
within PS 3280. Upon retirement of these facilities, there is an obligation to eliminate any environmentaf
impact and restore the land to its prior state. Estimated costs have been discounted to the present value
using a discount rate of 4.00% per annum. The fransition and recognition of asset retirement obligations
invoived an accompanying increase to the buildings capital asset carrying value. Liability will be fulfilled in 2

years.

14
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

7.

o~/
8. CAPITAL LEASE /7
4

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

Changes o the asset retirement obligation in the year are as follows:

2024 2023

Opening balance $ 41,430,768 $ -
Acquired upon adoption 41,627 954

Acguired during the yaar 57, 800 -
Accretion expense 1,488,589 52,813
Liabilities settled (255,891} (249,999)

T 42,721,266 § 41.430,768
S

/ 2024 2023

7

Bank of Montreal, 5.53%, repayabie in monthly
instaiments of principal and interest of $10,720
commencing July 2022, maturing June, 2027, secured

by equipment with a net book vatue of $352 5287 ,
it

$ 381,862 $ 486,232

7 ./ & 381862 § 486232
S

Minimum lease payments required i next 5 (five) year§ under capital lease are as follows:
Year ended March 31,

2028 128,642
2026 128,642
2027 128,642
2028 32,160
418,085
Interest included in ms?)m 36,223
/ / 5 381862

LONG-TERM DEBT

=~

The schedule attached to the comsslidated financial statements details the various terms and conditions
related to the long-term debt.

Principal payments required in each of the next five years on debt held as at March 31, 2024 are as follows:

2025 $ 11,973,471

2026 14,393,471

2027 9,393,471

2028 8,768,071

2029 7,027,171
15
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Fer the year ended March 31, 2024

10. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

2024 2023
Cost Additons Disposais Cosl /Amb!?zaﬁun
Beginning and and End inning Amoriization Net Book Net Book
of Year Transfers Whiteclowns of Yeat of Year Additions Disposals End of Year Valie Vaius
Land § 14262345 S 10,812 - 5 14271457 / 3 5 - § - § 4273357 14,262,345
T
Buildings ~ J
General governmenl services 10,351,626 52,587 - 10,404,2% / 3,954 864 T 62 688 - 4,257,352 6,148,861 6,355,862
Proiective sefvices 19,300,008 536,906 - 19,845,912 ‘32 288 301,937 - 3,825,225 16,020,687 15,985,718
Transportation services 11,634,192 210,524 - 1% B“Jiﬁ Q ?} 700 297,290 - 3,778,990 8,065,726 B,152.462
Environmenial services 33,260,974 20,684 - 33,281858 - f 13 7.913 832,068 - 14,108,961 19,171,677 19,983,061
Recrestion and cullurzl services 29,299 806 6,950,007 B 36,259,973 74835276 807,670 - 8,842,948 27,416,957 21,364 630
Industrial parks 1,084,104 - - 1084104 e ‘asags 27,103 - £10,018 473,186 500,289
Asset retirament obliaations 809,727 134.257 - 833984 - 337,503 = 337.502 456,481 699,727
105,639,535 7,914,965 B 1 }aﬂﬂM 32 sg‘sssg / 3,166,259 - 35762015 77.794585 73,042,679
Equipmeant RN T .
General govemnment services 3,007 560 - - 3,007 56& ,24531'.203 33,179 - 2,974,382 33,178 68,357
Proteclive services 21,343,853 836,421 - 22, 15{){3?4 AB 462,745 1.261.541 - 18,724,290 2,426,084 2,851,204
Pubfic works 50,756,986 3,937,393 - 04,604 389~ J’SG 743,795 3,906,746 - 40,650,511 14,043,878 14,013,201
Environmeantal health services 13,865,475 - - / 13‘865 475 B11,744 17,135 - 13,825,879 38,596 53,731
Recregtion and cutiural services 1,821 81% 257,168 = 2478087 ™ 1290415 50,334 = 5,840,749 338,238 131,404
90,865,803 5,030,882 v-/ / 95.396.?8,5 %.3.749,906 5,268,905 - 75.,018811 16,877,974 17,115,897
;o /
Cther 14 e f e
Ganeral governmenl services T42,484 - - - 7{2494 742,404 - - 742,494 — -
Road transport 213,228,576 10,257,363 - "23,485:969 83,675,573 5,639,713 - 89,315,286 134,170,683 128,553,003
Environmental health services 116,221,966 1,063,664 e | 1??8&,530 34,903,466 2352011 - 37255477 80,030,153 81,318,500
Recreation and cullugat services 25,547,829 2238801 s 7 786 720\} 24 296 432 1,029,174 — 25,325,603 2,461,117 1,251,397
Waterrant development 9,144,178 14,779 / - 9 163 357 4,655,639 184,624 - 4,840,263 4,323,604 4,493 539
Downtown development 2,528,504 1,703,283 / 463,946 100,898 - 504 644 3,637,253 2,034,658
Yharf - Sydney Maring Tesminal 22253546 - £ 2,412,702 495,025 - 2,967.727 14,285,819 15,780,644
Assal refirement obligation ~ CBRM 5015770 288,564 ™ - 577,128 - 577,128 4,727,206 -
Watler utiity assets 183,626,244 2,564,942 68,960,724 3655223 - 72615857 113,575,228 114,665,520
Port of Sydney Development
Corporation assels 11440608 135631 7,035,502 AT 969 - 1,343,561 4232679 4,405,017
580,754,816 18,267,157 - 608,021 973 227,236,568 14,341,572 — 241,576,140 306,443,633 357,502,478
5 BOGS22489  § 31,223,916 -~ § B3I, 746415 5 331583130 § 22,776,736 - § 356,358,866 5 475386549 466,528,369
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1.

12.

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
2024 2023
General operating fund $ (6,182,285 % {4,650,518)
Water operating fund 8,814,236 7,149,821
General capital fund 312,610,738 283,621,765
Woater capital fund 110,026,885 106,342,731
Port of Sydney Development Corporation 5,582,864 4,392,613
430,852,428 396,856,412

Reserves set aside by council 7,100,166 54,507 584

479,957,594  $ 451,363,996

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS
a) Defined benefit plan

On January 26, 20118, the Municipality signed a transfer ith Public Service Superannuaticn
Plan Trustee Encorporated ("PSSP i") to transi j to the PSSP, a contributory muilti-

pericd.

by Defined Contributip

rate is funded equa!y

The contributions for 2024 were t-8127/426 (2023 - $132,672).
¢) Municipal clerks' pension

The Municipality is required, under provisions of the Municipal Government Act of the Province of Nova
Scotia, to provide a non-contributory defined pension plan for Municipal Clerks in respect of years of
service to March 31, 1983.

The fability will be periodically adjusted based on triennial actuarial valuation and differences, if any,
between the actuarially determined liability and the liability as otherwise determined. This adjustment
will be charged to future operations.

Based on the 2024 valuation, the Municipafity had a plan surplus of $53,500 on a going concern basis.

17
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

12,

13.

4.

15.

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
dy Other

The Municipality directly provides pension arrangements in respect of former employees. The cost of
such pensions for 2024 was $197,177 (2023 - $188,157).

MISCELLANEOQOUS TRUST FUNDS

Miscellaneous Trust Funds administered by the Munigipality
assets under administration at March 31, 2024 are $4,862,

reported on separately. The fotal trust

CONTINGENCIES

a) As of March 31, 2024, there are a nu 3 ims against the Municipalify and its consolidated

appropriate. It is not possible to determine the amopunts that may uifimately be assessed against the

k) The Municipality is the plaintiff in various . gedings, which/have arisen, in the normai course of
carrying on ifs operations. it is not posslble at'thig time/to determine the amounts the Municipality may
receive with respect to these claims.

¢} The Municipality has guaragteed a number of loa
d) The Municipality has giaranteg

e) Canadian Environm

Per regulations
by the Nova

As at March 31, 2024, the Municipalityds not in compliance with certain CCME requirements.

TRANSFERS TO PROVINCIAL BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
(ay Cape Breton Island Housing Authority

The Municipality shared in the operations of the Authority for the year ended March 31, 2024, in the
amount of $3,269,227 (2023 - $2,534,823).

18
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

15.

16.

17.

TRANSFERS TO PROVINCIAL BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS (CONTINUED)
(b)  Assessment Services

The Municipality is required to pay a share of the cost of operating the provincial assessment system
based on the total provincial assessment cost times the average of the Municipality’s share of the
Uniform Assessment and the Municipalify’s share of assessment accounts. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, the Municipality's share of these cogfewas $1,361,309 (2023 - $1,369,058).

(€) Correctional Services

{d)  The Cape Breton-Victoria Regionat Centrg

ion, acting on befalf of the dredge oversight committee,
rpoyation—thow the Port of Sydney Devefopment
fust for specific purposes. The Port of Sydney
e with the agreement.

Corpaoration) to transfer the remaining funds fo. lawyers
Development Corporation draws down-the fund iMplia

=$178.485) is being h

As of March 31, 2024, $1856,65p (20 d in trust.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMEN

(a) Fair values

terms and maturities and approximates its carrying value.
(b)  Credit risk

The Municipaiity is exposed to credit-related losses in the event residents and entities that the
Municipality provides services to are unable to fulfil their obligations. The large number of residents
and customers minimizes the credit risk.

19

51



Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

19.

20.

{c) interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Municipality’s debentures are long term
with fixed range of rates thereby mitigating its interest rate risk.

it is management's apinion that the Municipality is ngi exposed to significant interest, market or credit
risks arising from these financial instruments.

grants the Board of the PSDC authoritifo opeTate-unger a goverpance structure independent of CBRM
Council, therefore its results of operations withnio 1oRgepformypart of these consolidated financial statements,

BUDGET INFORMATION

The disclosed budget inform
Aprit 16, 2023.

proved By the Mayor and Councit at the council meseting on
COMPARATIVE FIGURE!

Certain 2023 compa
adopted for the curfent ye

Frave been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Long-term Debt
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Term Interest Balance Balance
(years) rate - % Matures  March 31/23 Issued Redeemed March 31/24
General Fund
M.F.C.
33-B-1 10 0.000-3.614 2023 468,265 - 468,265 -
34-B-1 10 1.200-3.190 2024 2,660,000 - 1,330,000 1,330,000
35-A-1 10-20 1.040-3.449 2030 2,280,000 - 560,000 1,720,000
36-A-1 10 1.150-2.506 2026 2,497,600 - 624,400 1,873,200
37-A-1 10 1.734-3.073 2027 4,137,000 - 827,400 3,309,600
38-A-1 10 2.490-3.389 2028 7,184,999 1,197,500 5,987,499
FCM-1 10 2,250 2028 600,000, 100,000 500,000
39-A-1 10 2.016-2581 2029 7,175,060 1,025,000 6,150,000
40-A~1 10 0.400-2.376 2031 7,927.3 80,814 7,046,512
41-A-1 10 0.500-2.258 2031 10,020,240 113,360 8,906,880
42-B-1 16 3.847-4.177 2032 7,583,205 - 759,321 6,833,884
43.B-1 10-156 5.4860-5.463 2038 - /%?,057 - 8,887,057
52 43,6@5\/ 52587,057 8,886,080 52,544,632
M.F.C.
Promissory note
3 1100 14,084,298 -
Water Fund
M.F.C.
28-A-1 15 3.750-5.088 4,200,000 -
30-A-1 15 1.510-4.875 750,000 5,250,000
33-A-1 10  1.330-2.978 800,000 -
34-A-1 15 1.245-3.792 400,000 2,400,000
42-A-1 5 2.575-3.280 - 914,500 3,658,000
43-A-1 5 4.714-3.550 3,500,000 - 3,500,000
~ 372,500 3,500,000 7,064 500 14,808,000

§\85\,0(}DT4’33, $ 12,387,057  $ 30,034,858 § 67,352,632

T~/
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure
For the year ended March 21, 2024

General  Port of Sydney Recreation
G lepment P Trapsportati and Cultural  Developmant Educabonal
Year ended March 31, 2024 Senvices Corporation Services Health Services Health Services Services Services Services Waler Utllity Total
REVENUES
Taxadon $ B4909362 § - $ 20314218 % 8,901,780 & / $ - H - $ 16,530,308 § - 130,655,688
Granis in feu of taxes 10,480,435 - - - - - - - 10,480,435
Services provided 1o other N
govermmants - - 519,495 - P A . - - - - 915,499
Sales of services 62,088 - - 2102045 L/ 2541934 - - 4,806,845
Revenite from own sources 2610,725 2,568,346 1677664 - 3,225,955 T~ \b - 50,144 - - 41,130,834
Unconditonat ransfers from /
olher governmenis 15,777,701 - - A - - - 15,777,701
Condiliohal transfers from / / / /
other governments - 3,957 4,689,003 f= T - — - - 4,692,960
Capital granis - B 1,555,044 8454978, 10;435‘914 1,125 582 155,617 - - 24,627,736
Metered sales - - - - Tl Tz - - - 20,520,805 20,520,605
Olher waler revenues - - - - ™~ S "‘\;, - - 568,034 958,034
investment incoma 1,313,531 - - /"-*K. —_— -/ - - - - 1,313,524
Conlributed assels - - - - e 6,928,500 - - 5,928,500
Gain on sale of properties 179,979 - - A - - - - - 179,075
Disaster recovery = = = S 4 E06Te60 - - = - 2,967,850
115333719 3,570,303 28,156,428 1 9,459?!30\5 /5,5294729 10,695,816 203,781 16,520,208 21,488,832 232,870,808
. /
EXPENSES AT,
Salaries, wages and benefts 8,762,331 543,932 35,827,141 / ~19,77% 785 “., 3945596 5,932,482 831,305 - 2,779,766 78,500,408
Interest on long-term debf 364,353 — 285,54 / pe9.424 S F 321,304 348,019 - - 650,992 2,330,725
Materials, gnods, suppkes r’{ j -
atid wikites 289,111 571,367 1,661,808 T~ BI367027. 2401008 3,235,570 21,882 - 5,842,241 21,099,062
Coniracied services 1,123,753 94,589 875,200~ E,i@,ﬁ?ﬂ 12,267,864 1,420,471 118,129 - 4,655,837 23,843,633
Othet operating expenses 5,902,535 562,395 19,050,812 “\QEIASSMB@ 4,286,123 1,264,970 211,474 - 2,900,425 35,632,230
External iansfers and grants 4,826,959 - 1,043:631™ . S "~ - 778,800 - 16,530,308 - 23,177 898
Amorlization 295 868 307,959 1,763,479 0,843,718, ? 3.208.215 1919175 B07.449 = 3,666,582 21,797.454
22,274,908 2,380,052 SYA06.914 T 52,089,151 28423318 14,801,487 1,980,229 16,530,308 17,495,843 206,382,210
ANNUAL SURPLUS (SEFICIT) $ 93058811 & 119025% § (22250,488) §  (33,530,%6) § (9,693583) § (4194671 § (1784568) S S 3892996 26 588 598
> - A

~.

-~

~

2

T
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Cape Breton Regional Nunicipality

Consolidated Schedule of Segment Disclosure
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Segment reporting is designed to assist users in identifying the IE: d 1o supporl the major aclivilies of the icipality nd to baiter understand fhe p of segments.

The i I provides Tor the 2023 and 2022 fiscal years. Segment resulls represent the aclivities of that segiment and are based on the same accounting policies as described in the
Signifcant Accounting Puhcles as described in Note 1. The Municipagty has determined lhat ihe fotlowing segments rep:esent he major activities of government.

General  Port of Sydney / Z Recrealion
Governmeni o] P | F b T p i and Cultural  Development Educalional
Year anded March 31, 2024 Services Corporalion Seryices Health Services  / Heg@ﬁgrvicéx Sanvices Services Sewvices Water Ulility Total
\_ R
REVENUES el Ty
Taxatian § Tr043460 § - 5 18432265 8,077,10; §? - % s - H] - § 15,534,623 s - % 119087257
Granls In iou of taxes 8,295,051 - - - - - - 9,396,051
Services provided to other 7
{overnments - - 1,145,521 \f A - - - 1,145,521
Sales of sarvices 76,440 - - 2,109 Q'D‘L é:g 1,965,968 - - - 4,172,300
Revenue from own soulces 3,243,042 2,301,872 724,649 T Ny 2 9.]\3 - 57,621 - - 9,176,900
Uncondilionat transfers from ~— ~
other governmenis 15,851,979 — - e e/ - - - - 15,851,978
Conditional transfers frem T,
other governmenls - 144,177 4,609,846 T e - - - - - 4,754,023
Capilal grants 9222 - - 4,959_‘.099\ / :ﬂm.ﬂéﬁ 625,339 - - - 28,941,148
Melered sales - - - = - - - - 19,222,036 19,322,036
Other waler fevenues - - - e -~ - - - - 1,000,625 1,000,625
Investmen income 794,255 - - - el = ™ - - - - - 794,255
Gain on sale of properiies 329,820 8,500 - o \ - Y - - - - - 335,320
Disasler recovery 5213522 - - = - - 8,213 522
112,957 503 2452 548 24,912, 335 / 15/¥56’T05 2’5 183, 2{]2 2615307 57,621 15,534,623 20,322,661 220,191,954
EXPENSES \\
Salaties, wagies and benefits 8,211,528 815,895 33874351 B TZU 25\ 4,428,572 5,498,749 825763 - 2,312,078 74,787,224
Interest on long-lerm debt 435,225 - 2055917~ . ‘43Q 4?9 ~ 188,262 263,589 - - 1,041.977 2,565,124
Materials, goods, supplies / .
and utities 952 636 473,800 /]{773 752 . 5\725 165 2,198,839 2,600,571 18,175 - 5,479,049 19,225,407
Conlracled services 858,718 11,38% 830,139 6,52&‘657 16,735,969 402,582 172,544 - 1,658,280 21,206,180
Othet operating expenses 4,240,005 444 662 {9.7 612 1, 534 5 3,901,147 2,040,235 210,096 - 2625310 34,982,772
Externa! lransfers and grants 4,001,026 - ?';05&,547"\. - - 803,800 — 15,534,623 - 21,483,995
ARO adjustment 650,512 - RN Y. (25,725,561) 1172 - - 30,124 (20,693,535)
Amorlization 204,543 331,946 1573610 " 3,179,256 1,567,078 762,237 - 3,706,181 20,882,777
18,744,153 2,078,014 49,158,662 (1,093,545) 13,278,176 1,988,815 15,534,623 16,753,009 174,439,945
ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 5 93,213,308 § 374,535 5 (24286277 § (41.801863) % 27,276,717 § (i10,562,868) S (1,931,194) § = $ 3566652 § 45,752,009
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Remuneration and Reportable Expenses of Council
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Annual Travel
Council Remuneration Expenses
D. Bruckschwaiger $ 54,719 $ 542
J. Edwards (Deputy Mayor) 5 60,117 $ 12,048
L. Green $ 54719 $ 4177
S. Gillespie $ 54,719 $ -
C. MacDonald $ 54,7189 $ 666
E. MacDonald P 54719 3 9,833
G. MacDonald o 54,719 $ 3853
E. MacMullin 54719 $ 4,071
A. McDougall-Merrill (Mayor) 4 $ 39,565
D. O'Quinn 3 1,369
S. Parsons _ $ 1725
G. Paruch $ -
K. Tracey /7 $ 532

24
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Schedule of Remuneration and Reportable Expenses of Senior Staff
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Annuat Reportable
Senior Staff Remuneration Expenses
M. Bettens $ 11,832 $ -
D. Campbeil-Ryan $ 30,545 $ 517
J. Campbell $ 132,098 $ 4103
C. Dicks $ 64,968 $ 1,385
K. Durning $ 132,098 $ 2,652
D. Evely $~.132,098 $ -
0. Kachafanas 135,231 $ 1,572
W. MacDonald $ / 140,195 $ 7,172
J. MacKinnon 8 $ 14,142
M. Ruus $ 5,161
M. Seth $ 1,379
M. Walsh 3 5,942
R. Waish 172,60 $ 4714

[
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Operating Fund and Change in Fund Balance
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Unaudited)
2024 2023
REVENUES
Taxes 3 130,655,688 $ 119,087,257
Grants in lieu of taxes 10,480,435 9,368,051
Services provided to other governments 919,489 1,145,521
Sales of services 4,806,946 4,172,309
Revenue from own sources 12,615,028 11,826,538
Unconditional transfers from other
governments 15,777,701 15,851,979
Conditionat transfers from other governments 4 689,003 4,609,848
Disaster recovery T 2 967,860 6,213,522
“/ 2 160 172,303,023
EXPENSES

General government services 18. 116,372 15,995,096
Protective services 56,719,826 54,701,383
Transportation services 42 874,738 43,239,884
Environmental health services 22,033,690 (34,841,482)
Public health and welfare services 3,465,650 2,721,869
Environmental development services 1,182,880 1,226,578

Educational services

Recreation and cuftural services 12,978,758 11,609,926
i i /\\ 16,530,308 15,534,623

\?7 /\/ 173,802,222 110,187,967

Excess of revenues over expenses before the followi 9,009,938 62,115,056

instalments {8,886,085) (8,506,443)
Transfer to special reserve finds (710,051} 3,589,200
Transfer to general capital (884,719} -
Amortization of bond discount (60,880} {57 520}

(10,541,715} (4,974,763)
~
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE T~/ {1,531,777) 57,140,293
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR (4,650,518) {61,790,811)
FUND BALANCE, END OFW / / $ (6,182,295) $ (4,650,518)
26
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Schedule of Water Utility Operating Fund and Change in Fund Balance

For the year endsd March 31, 2024

(Unaudifed)
2024 2023
OPERATING REVENUES
Metered sales $ 20,520,805 $ 19,322,036
Public fire protection 7,076,391 7,076,391
Consurner’s interest 317,748 769,932
27,914,944 27,168,359
OPERATING EXPENSES

Source of supply 443,085 502,819
Power and pumping 1,626,734 1,820,819
Water freaiment 5,961,827 4,967,373
Transmission and distribution 4,594,067 4 506,939
Administration and general ) 33,418 3,206,353
Taxes -g84,.992 1,896,230
/ / m 18,171,103 16,900,633
Excess of revenues over expenses before the follofying ™/ 9,743,841 10,267,726

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Misceilaneous 650,286 230,693

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
interest on debentures 650,992 1,041,977
Amortization of debt discounts 20,278 24 539
Other 27,360 25,605
Transfer to water capital fund 7,381,082 8,521,404
Transfer to general capital fund ™, 650,000 650,000
m \ “: / 8,729,712 10,263,525
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE \/ 1,664,415 234 894
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF R 7,149,821 6,914,927
FUND BALANCE, END OF}YEAR 7 $ 8,814,236 $ 7.149.821

et
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Capital Fund and Change in Fund Balance
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unaudifed)
2024 2023
REVENUES
Capital grants $ 14,240,868 $ 18,220,293
Contributed assets 6,928,900 -
21,169,768 18,220,293
EXPENSES
General government services 611,728 945,054
Protective services 1,763,479 1,673,670
Transportation services 16,114,413 13,718,084
Environmertal health services 4,389,628 33,747,977
Recreation and cultural services 912,729 1,668,250
Planning and development services s 49 762,237
/ 19,508,426 52,415,272
s
Excess of revenues over expenses before the following U 1,570,342 {34,194,979)
FINANCING AND TRANSFERS
Transfer from reserve funds 16,897,847 16,983,712
Transfer from general operating fund 884,719

Transfer from water operating fund 656,000 650,000
Debenture and term loan principal instaiments 8,886,065 8,506,443

ﬁ /\_/ 27,418,631 25,120,155
~F

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 28.988.973 (8,074,824)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF/QR\ 283,621,765 291,696,589
AN

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR  / | T — $ 312610738 § 283,621,765

S
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Water Utility Capital Fund and Change in Fund Balance
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Unaudited)
2024 2023
REVENUES
Capital grants $ - 3 -
EXPENSES
Amortization 3,696,928 3,736,304
[~
Deficiency of revenues over expenses before the following 3,696,928 3,736,304
FINANCING AND TRANSFERS
Transfer from water operating fund /\ 7,381,082 8,521,404
~ CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE > W‘I 54 4,785,100
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR /\7 106,342,731 101,557,631
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR Z\ / / $ 110,026,885 $ 106,342,731

S
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
Schedule of Port of Sydney Development Corporation Operating Fund and

Change in Fund Balance
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unaudited)
Budget 2024 2023
(Unaudited)
REVENUES
Wharfage and berthage $ 708,361 $ 874,881 $ 696,742
Passenger tax 1,489,585 1,624,441 876,697
Events 198,800 177,279 89,606
Security 378,659 279,740
Siorage and rental 328,799 255 864
Craft market 130,027 67,278
Sundry 52,260 35,945
Government funding < 3.957 144,177
. 3332@%303 2,446,049
EXPENSES -
Advertising and promotion 7 25,388 15,024
Bad debts - 1,752
Cruise activities 40,529 55,222
Dues and fees 34,893 29,226
Events 55,431 13,562
Insurance 74,292 68,084
Interest and bank charges 5,331 5,212
Miscellansous 36,754 16,292
Office and adminisfration 14,531 12,034
Professional fees 94,589 11,381
Rent 52,320 52,320
Repairs and maintenance e 254,669 225,118
Security 252,492 179,831
Travel 40,386 21,119
Utilities 246,236 223,085
Wages and benefits 843,832 815,895
\\j 2,072,083 1,746,068
Excess of revenues over expenses before
the following 996,749 1,498,220 699,981
Amortization of capital assets (385,405) {307,969) (331,946)
Gain on disposal of assgts 8,500
CHANGE IN FUND BALA \/ $ 611,344 1,190,251 374,535
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF Y 4,392 613 4,018,078
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 5582864 $ 43928613
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Reserve Funds and Change in Fund Balance
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unaudited)
2024 2023
REVENUES

Investment income $ 1,307,267 $ 789,888
Sale of properties 179,979 329,815
Grants 7,386,868 10,720,853
8,874,114 11,840,556

FINANCING AND TRANSFERS
Transfer from operating fund 710,051 (3,588,200}
Transfer to capital funds (16,997,847 (116,863,712)

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR /

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR [\\ ™~/

\(@5&2) {8,712,356)

52,455,283 61,167,639

/\ (16,287,796) (20,652,812}
/

$ 45,041,601 $ 52,455,283
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Schedule of Water Utility Reserve Funds and Change in Fund Balance
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{(Unaudited)}
2024 2023

REVENUES
Investment income 3 6,264 5 4,367
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 6,264 4,367
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,052,301 2,047,934
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 2,058,565 $ 2,052,301

N,

QX

S
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial State

The accompanying financial statements of the Ca

Utility™) are the responsibility of the Water Ultility's afig have been prepared in compliance with
legislation and in accordance with the Accounting gnd Hagdbook for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia. A
summary of the significant accounting policies Note 2 to the financial statements. The
preparation of financial statements necessarily involves imates based on management’s judgment,

particularly when transactions affecting the current accountin
future periods.

The Water Utility’s management maintai \: s
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transacti
iegislative and regulatory requirements, and reli
preparation of the financial statements. These syste

endent external auditors appointed by the Water
Utility. The accompanying Indepe ifqrs’ Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their
examination and their opinion on_the Watefijli cial statements.

Jennifer Campbell, Chief Financial Offi

67



Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Statement of Financial Position — Operating Fund
As at March 31, 2024

2024 2023
ASSETS
Cash $ - $ 1.884,638
Water rates receivable (less allowance for doubtful
accounts $1,115,581 (2022 - $869,558)) 11,603,737 10,238,062
Sundry receivables 204,940 158,513
inventories 476,899 427 972
/ / $..12,285,576 $ 12,710,185
\/
LIABILITIES
Bank indebtedness $ 1,541,570 $ -
Payables and accruals 4,168,095 4,525,206
Unearned revenue 1,447 617 1,353,430
Due to Cape Breton Regional Municipality
General section, operating fund - -
General section, capitat fund w - -
Due to water utifity, capital fund - 3,666,173
7,157,282 9,544 809
SURPLUS 5,128,294 3,165,376
$ 12,285,576 $ 12,710,185

Mayo

{5 o
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Statement of Financial Activities — Operating Fund
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
Budget Actual Actual
(Unaudited)
OPERATING REVENUES
Metered sales $ 19,218,519 $ 20,520,805 $ 19,322,036
Public fire protection 7,076,391 7,076,391 7,076,391
Consumer's interest 0,000 960,113 769,032
Service connections /%I!OO 7,921 230,693
28,565,230 27,389,052
OPERATING EXPENSES
Source of supply 443,065 502,819
Power and pumping 6,734 1,820,919
Water treatment 5,052,816 B27 4,967,373
Transmission and distribution 5,069,739 5,244,067 5,166,939
Administration and general 7 3,563,418 3,206,353
Depreciation 3,666,582 3,706,904
Taxes 1,981,992 1,896,230
22,868,358 22 487,685 21,257,537
E:xcess of operating revenues over expenses \7
before the following 841,652 6,077,545 6,141,515
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Amortization of deferred capital contributions 208,502 298,502
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Debt charges
Provision for principal repayme 687,972 3,564,500 3,564,500
Interest 0,485 650,992 1,041,977
Amortization of debt di - 20,277 24,540
Bank fees/charges 150,000 27,360 25,6803
Capital expenditures out of oper. 150,000 150,000 1,250,000
4,868,457 4,413,129 5,906,620
T
ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT}— 4 {1,026,805) $ 1962918 3 533,367

See accompanying notés to

ancial statements.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Statement of Operating Fund Surplus
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 3,165,376 $ 2631979
Annual surplus 1,062,918 533,397
SURPLUS, END OF YEAR $ 5,1282094 $ 3,165376

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Statement of Cash Flows — Operating Fund
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annual suplus $ 1,962,918 $ 533,387
Change in non-cash operating working capital
Water rates receivable {1,364,675) 212844
Sundry receivables (46,427) (48,751
Inventories (48,927) (33,336)
Payables and accruals {357,111} {420,039}
Unearned revenue 94,187 (30,907)
239,955 213,208
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in due to Cape Breton Regional
Municipality, capital fund - (693,440)
Decrease in due to water utility, capital fund (3,666,173) (185,880)
(3,666,173) (879,320)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (3,426,208) (666,112)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,884,638 2,550,750
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END Qf YEAR (1,541,570} $ 1884838
Cash and cash equivalents consist of. V
Cash - $ 1,884,638
Bank indebtedness (1,541,570) -
(1,541,570) $ 1,884,638

See accompanying notes to no

finarcial statements.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Statement of Financial Position

Water Utility

— Capital Fund
As at March 31, 2023

2024 2023
ASSETS
Cash $ 6,283,155 3 4,530,994
Cash — depreciation reserve 3,457,830 3,457 630
HST receivable 96,334 152,015
9,837,118 8,140,639
Due from water utility, operating fund - 3,666,173
Due from general operating fund 76,854 -
tnamortized debt discount 2,554 61,098
Capital assets :
Utitity plant in service (Schedule A) 186,016,206 183,475,826
Work in progress 3,034,604 2,599,283
Properties adjoining watershed 174,977 174,977
190,125,787 186,250,096

\$] 200,102,314

$ 198,118,008

- —
LIABILITIES
Accounts and holdbacks payable : ; $ 446,725 3 1,786,192
Due to Cape Breton Regional Municipality
General section, capital fund - 300,772
General section, operating fund 106,469 -
Asset retirement obligation (Note 4 139,086 139,086
Term debt (Schedule B) 14,808,000 18,372,500
/\/ / 15,500,280 20,598,550
DEFERRED CAPITAL CO BUTIONS 11,783,802 12,082,306
RESERVES
Accumulated allowance/ior dgpreciation of
utility plant 72,627,305 88,960,723
FUND BALANCE 100,180,927 96,476,427
~7 $ 200,102,314 $ 198,118,006

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

QOn behalf of the Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility:

Mayor

Cierk
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility
Statement of Change in Cash — Depreciation Reserve
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 3,457,630 $ 3,457,830
Depreciation 3,666,582 3,706,904
Amortization of capital contributions (298,502) (298,502)
Capital purchases (2,540,381} (3,971,731)
Fund, end of year 4,285,329 2,894,301
Amount over (under) funded /\ (827,899) 563,329
CASH, END OF YEAR S~ \$\3 457,630 $ 3,457,630

Statement ¢f Accumulated Allowance for Depreciation
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR \/$ 68,960,723 $ 65,253,819
Depreciation for the year w 3,666,582 3,706,904
BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 72,627,305 $ 68,960,723
o t of Investment in Capital Assets

For the year ended March 31, 2024

=7
2024 2023
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR \Q $ 96476427  $ 91,661,927

Term debt retired 3,564,500 3,564,500
Capital out of operatio 150,000 1,250,000
BALANCE, END OF YEAR / $ 100,190,927 $ 96,476,427

See accompanying nofes to non- consohdated financial statements.
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Statement of Financial Position — Special Reserve Fund
As at March 31, 2024

2024 2023

ASSETS

Cash $ 1,166,626 $ 1,166,626

Term deposif 891,038 885,676
A $ 2,058,564 $ 2,052,302

RESERVE

Spedial reserve s 2,058,564 $ 2052302

=
See accompanying notes to financial statements. w

On behalf of the Cape Breton Regional Municipality,
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Statement of Special Reserve
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
Non-shareabie Future Woatershed Sysco
debt capital land waterline
expendifure  expenditure acquisition maintenance Total Total
BALANCE,
BEGINNING
OF YEAR $ 55543 $ 939,668 $ 340,84 $ 716245 $ 2052302 § 2,047934
interest on
investments 250 4,260 6,262 4,368

Lo

BALANCE, END \\/
OF YEAR $ 55793 § 943926 / $ 342,600 § 716,.2457% 2,058,564 §$ 2,052,302

See accompanying notes to financial statements. U
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

The Cape Breton Regional Municipality Act, assented to by the Province of Nova Scotia on July 30, 1994,
legislated the incorporation of the Cape Breton Regional Municipality as of August 1, 1995.

The Cape Breton Regicnal Municipality Water Utility assumed the operations, as of August 1, 1885, of the
following utilities:

Town of Sydney Mines Water Utility
Town of North Sydney Water Utility
Sydney Water Commission

Municipality of the County of Cape Breto
Town of Glace Bay Water Utility
Town of Dominion Water Utility
New Waterford and District Water C
Town of Louisbourg Water Utility

1. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Revenue
Effective April 1, 2023, the Water Utility

for the recognition, measurement, and dj

adopled

sure-of revenue under PS 3400 Revenue. The new standard
3 even e and provides the related financial statement

presentation and disclosure requirements. Purduant to these recommendations, the change was applied

There was no material impgct of from the prospective application of the new

accounting recommendatiogs.

epared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
ova Scotia and are intended for the use of the Cape Breton
ater Utility), Council and Service Nova Scotia and Municipal

p

Regional Municipality Water tiifity (the X
Relations.

The basis of accounting used in these financial statements differs materially from generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada
Handbook (the CPA Handbook). The significant differences between generally accepted accounting
principles for Water Utiliies in Nova Scotia and the CPA Handbook are that the CPA Handbock
feguires:

10
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

{©

(d)

(e)

Basis of presentation

The basis of accounting used in these financial statements differs materially from generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada

Handbook (the CPA Handbook). The significant differences between generally accepted accounting

principles for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia and the A Handbook are that the CPA Handbook
requires:
s This would include, at a minimum, indivi unds represented in these financial
statements — Operating Fund, Capital 4 y s, The consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance A yok_would inciude a Statement of

Balances;
« Revenue and expenses be record

s«  Water Utility capitatize all of its capital acquieili her than charging some to operations in
the year acquired; and

« Principal debt repayment:

Cash and cash equivalients

that will be incurred in collecting rates receivable
outstanding.

inventories

Inventories are gtated4 . st and Het realizable value and are measured using the first in,

Tangible capital assets adnuired sifce aphalgamation on August 1, 1995 are reported in the statement
of financial position at cost net o urfulated amortization. All tangible capital assets acguired prior to
amalgamation have been written off. They are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
usefut lives at the following rates:

Basis Rate
Structures and improvements Straight-line 75 years
Equipment Straight-ine 5-20 years
Mains Straight-line 75 years
Services and other Straight-line 50 years
Meters Straight-line 20 years
Hydrants Straight-line 50 years

11
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f) Revenue and expenses
Maior revenue and expense items are recorded on an accrual basis.

Certain sources of revenue, including forfeited discounts and interest on past due rates, are recorded
on a cash basis.

Capital grants and contributions are recorded uging
amortized to revenue at a rate corresponding with the amo

e deferral method of accounting and are
jon of the related capi{al asset.

payment.

{g) Asset retirement obligation

Jent giving rise to the liability has
p, and a reasonable estimate of the

nigue, when the cash flows required fo settle or
xpected to accur over extended future periods.

r the useful life of the reiated asset. For asset

The Water Utility continues to réteghize the fiability until it is seftied or otherwise extinguished.
Disbursemenis made to settle the liability are deducted from the reported liability when they are made

12
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(hy Financiat instruments

i)

Initial measurement

Financial instruments are measured at fair value when issued or acquired. For finandial instruments
alye is adjusted by the amount of the related
financing fees and transaction costs. Transaction £osts’and financing fees relating to the financial
instruments that are measured subseguently at fajf valie.are recognized in operations in the year in

subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost, faj

which they are incurred.

Financial instruments consist of cash and
accounis and holdbacks payable and long ters

Subsequent measurement

requires management fo make estimales and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting pericds. Significant items
subject to such estimates and assumptions include valuation of accounts receivable and carrying
amount of capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

13
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

TRANSACTIONS WITH CAPE BRETON REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY

a) In general, and where identifiable, costs incurred by the Cape Breton Regienal Municipality on behalf of
the Water Utility are charged to the utility.

b) Salary and wage-related costs are allocated in proportion to time spent performing functions on behalf
of the Water Utility.

¢) As prescribed by the Nova Scotia Utility and Review [
to the Water Utility by the Cape Breton Regional
and other administration charges totaling $8,449,8:

4 there is a yearly administration fee charged
ity, which includes salary, overhead, utilities

d) The Water Utility provides public fire protection

e) The Water Utility is not exempt from munigipal t

within the next fiscal period.
outstanding,

Changes to the asset retirement obligation ir/the year are as follows:

2024 2023
Opening balance $ 139,086 $ -
Acquired upon adoption - 139,086
Acquired during the year - -
Liabilities settled - -
$ 139,086 $ 139,086

14
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and accruals and accounts and
holdbacks payable approximate their fair value due to the relatively short terms to maturity.

The carrying value of inter-fund balances and due foffrom Cape Breton Regional Municipality approximates
its fair value due to the térms and conditions being the sa
the Water Utility.

or simitar to current market rates avaiiable to

The fair value of the debt approximates the carrying val
approximate current market rates available to the Waigr Utii

because the contractual rates of interest

0@4 -
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Schedule A - Utility Plant and Equipment
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
Organization $ 4,000 $ 4,000
Working capital 70,182 70,162
74,162 74,162
Land and land rights
Source of supply land 1,435,550 1,435,550
Power and pumping land 343,374 343,374
Transmission land 157,021 157,021
1,835,945 1,835,945
Structures and improvements
Source of supply 19,072,695 19,012,595
Power and pumping 924,332 7,515,156
Purification structures 2,791,214 2,791,214
Distribution and storage 5,336,968 5,336,968
Shop 299,817 299817
Asset retirement obligation 139,086 139,088
35,104,012 35,004,835
Equipment
Electrical pumping equipment 3,776,122 3,776,122
Diesel pumping equipment 543,261 543,261
Purification equipment w 24,596,055 24,134,313
Office furniture and equipment 362,453 362,453
Transportation equipment 309,945 309,945
Meter shop equipment 30,689 30,689
Tools and work equipment 268,948 268,948
Motor operated teols 680,584 680,584
QOther m 690,072 690,072
\\/ —nd 31,258,129 30,796,387
Mains
Transmission 31,679,074 31,579,074
Distribution /_\\ 53,903,842 52,596,129
- 85,482,916 84,175,203
Services 15,751,013 15,260,313
Meters 12,304,443 12,101,272
Hydrants 4,105,586 4,037,708

$ 186,016,206 $ 183,475,826




Cape Breton Regional Municipality Antigonish Water Utility

Schedule B - Capital Debt
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Balance Balance
March 31, March 31,
Date of lssue  Maturity Date  Interest Rale % 2023 Issued Redeemed 2024
Municipal Finance Corporation ~
28-A-1 2008 2023 / ~~ 4.940 - 5.088 $ 4200000 % - $ 4200000 % -
30-A-1 2010 2025 Z 4.500 —4.875 6,000,000 - 750,000 5,250,00G
33-A-1 2013 2023 2454 -2979 BOGOG0 - 809,000 -
34-A-% 2014 2029 T2R16-3.792 2,860,000 - 400,000 2,400,000
42-A-1 2022 20217 /T 25757 3.290 4,572,500 - 914,500 3,658,000
43-A-1 2023 29\5\ / 4714 - 335 - 3,500,000 - 3,500,000
oLy $18,372,500 $ 3,500,000  § 7,064,500  $14,808,000
/ L\_, / /’
Principal repayments required during the next five years are as foliows: \‘\\ S
el Ty
ST — R
2025 $ 2,764,500 S 7
2026 $6,514,500 RN /“w -
2027 $ 2,014,500 SN
2028 § 2,014,500 S /
2029 $ 1,100,000 e ""\\ ‘-\\ "
A \ -
! PR
. T j— _,1_/
\\\‘\\ (‘-.
T — e -
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January 20, 2025
Members of the Audit Committee of Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Dear Audit Committee:

We are pleased to submit to you this report for discussion of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
Cape Breton Regional Municipality (the "Municipality”y and financial statements of the Cape Breton Regional
Municipality Water Utility (the "Water Utility") as at March 31, 2024 and for the year then ended. In this report we
caver those significant matters which, in our opinion, you should be aware of as members of the Audit Committee.

We have substantially completed our audits of the consolidated financial statements of the Municipality and the
financial statements of the Water Utility which have been carried out in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards.

Unless unforeseen complications arise, our Independent Auditor's Report wilt provide unmaodified opinions to the
Mayor and Council of the Municipality and the Water Utility. A draft copy of our proposed Independent Auditor's
Reports are attached at the end of this report.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and management and should
not be distributed to or used by any other parties than these specified parties.

The matters raised in this and other reports that will flow from the audit are only those which have come to our
attention arising from or relevant to our audit that we believe need to be brought to your attention. They are not a
comprehensive record of all the matters arising, and in particular we cannot be held responsible for reporting all
risks in your business or all control weaknesses. This report has been prepared solely for your use and should not
be quoted in whole ar in part without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as
the report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, any other purpose.

We would like to express our appreciation for the excellent cooperation we have received from management and
employees with wham we worked.

We appreciate having the opportunity to meet with you and to respond to any questions you may have about our
audit, and to discuss any other matters that may be of interest to you.

Sincerely,

MNP cer

Chartered Professional Accountants

encls
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Introduction

As auditors, we report to the Mayor and Council on the results of our examination of the consolidated financial
statements of Cape Breton Regional Municipality (the "Municipality”) and financial statements of the Cape Breton
Regional Municipality Water Utility (the "Water Utility") as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024. The purpose
of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you, as members of the Audit Committee, in your review of the results of
our audit. To facilitate in your understanding of our findings, Appendix A to this report summarizes our audit
process.

Our report will discuss the status of our engagement, as well as communicate to you significant audit, accounting
and reporting matters arising from our procedures.

We hope that this report is of assistance to you, and we look forward to discussing our findings and answering
your questions.

Engagement Status

We have substantially completed our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Municipality and Water
Utility and are prepared to sign our Independent Auditor's Report subsequent to completion of the following
procedures:

e Receipt of the remaining outstanding legal confirmation and discussion;
e Receipt of the signed management representation letters;
e Discussion of subsequent events with the Audit Committee;

e The Mayor and Council's review and approval of the Municipality's consolidated financial statements
and the Water Utility financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report

We expect to have the above procedures completed and to release our Independent Auditor’s Report on January
20, 2025.

Unless unforeseen complications arise, our Independent Auditor's Report will provide unmodified opinion to the
Mayor and Council of the Municipality and the Water Utility. A draft copy of our proposed Independent Auditor’s
Reports has been included with this report.

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings
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Significant Audit, Accounting and
Reporting Matters

Audit and Reporting Matters

The following significant matters arose during the course of audit that we wish to bring to your attention.

Comments

Changes from Audit Service
Plan

There were no deviations from the Audit Service Plan. Please refer to
Appendix B for the significant and higher risk areas and our audit
responses.

Difficulties Encountered

No significant limitations were placed on the scope or timing of our
audit.

Identified or Suspected Fraud

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit and the nature of fraud,
including attempts at concealment through forgery or collusion, an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards cannot be relied upon to detect fraud.

While our audit cannot be relied upon to detect all instances of fraud,
no incidents of fraud, or suspected fraud, came to our attention in the
course of our audit.

Identified or Suspected Non-
Compliance with Laws And
Regulations

Nothing has come to our attention that would suggest any non-
compliance with laws and regulations that would have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Matters Arising in Connection
With Related Parties

No significant matters arose during the course of our audit in
connection with related parties of the Municipality.

Significant Deficiencies in
Internal Control

Our audit process focuses on understanding the controls utilized in
management’s reporting systems, including for estimates, to the extent
necessary to identify overall and specific financial reporting risks. This
risk assessment allows us to concentrate our audit procedures on high
risk areas and, where possible, place reliance on controls within the
financial reporting system to reduce the extent of our testing.

It is important to note that our assessment was not, nor was it intended
to be, sufficient to comment or conclude on the sufficiency of internal
controls.

We are required under Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
to communicate all significant deficiencies identified during an audit to

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings
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Comments

the Audit Committee on a timely basis. However, we may not be aware
of all significant deficiencies that do, in fact, exist.

While our review of controls was not sufficient to express an opinion as
to their effectiveness or efficiency, we communicate our findings and
recommendations in the Management Letter.

Going Concern

No events or conditions were identified during the audit that may cast
significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern
including: Whether the events or conditions constitute a material
uncertainty, whether management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting is appropriate in the preparation of the financial statements,
adequacy of related disclosures, etc.

Matters Arising from
Discussions With Management

We would like to formally acknowledge the cooperation and assistance
we received from the management and staff of the Municipality.

There were no significant matters discussed, or subject to
correspondence, with management that in our judgment need be
brought to your attention.

Significant Differences

A few significant adjustment were proposed to management with
respect to the March 31, 2024 financial statements. A summary of
significant differences has been included as Appendix B to this report.

Final Materiality

Materiality is a concept used to assess the significance of misstatements
or omissions that are identified during the audit and is used to
determine the level of audit testing that is carried out. The scope of our
audit work is tailored to reflect the relative size of operations of the
Municipality, and is affected by our assessment of materiality and audit
risk.

Final materialities used for the consolidated financial statement audit of
the Municipality and the audit of the Water Utility were $8,700,000 and
$1,044,000, respectively, with respect to the March 31, 2024 audit.

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings
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Auditor’s Views of Significant Accounting Practices

The application of Canadian public sector accounting standards allows and requires the Municipality to make
accounting estimates and judgments regarding accounting policies and financial statement disclosures.

As auditors, we are uniquely positioned to provide open and objective feedback regarding your Municipality's
accounting practices, and have naoted the following items during the course of our audit that we wish to bring to
your attention.

Comments

Accounting Policies We noted the following newly adopted, and changes in, accounting
policies:

e PS 3400 Revenue - The new standard establishes when to recognize
and how to measure revenue, and provides the related financial
statement presentation and disclosure requirements. There was no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements from the
prospective application of the new accounting recommendations.

Accounting Estimates The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosure of contingencies
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses in the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes.

Amortization is based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets.

Taxes, rates and other receivables are stated after evaluation as to their
collectability and an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided where considered necessary.

Asset retirement obligations are recognized based upon assumptions
and estimates related to the amount and timing of costs for future
removal and site restoration.

By their nature, these judgments are subject to measurement
uncertainty, and the effect on the financial statements of changes in
such estimates and assumptions in future years could be material.
These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as
adjustments become necessary, they are reported in excess of revenues
over expenses in the years in which they become known.

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings 4
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Comments

Financial Statement Disclosures

The disclosures made in the notes to the consolidated and Water Utility

financial statements appear clear, neutral and consistent with our
understanding of the entity and the amounts presented in the
consolidated and Water Utility financial statements.

Other Matters

Management Representations

We have requested certain written representations from management, which represent a confirmation of certain
oral representations given to us during the course of our audit. These letters, provided by management, have
been included as additional material to this report.

Auditor Independence

We confirm to the Audit Committee that we are independent of the Municipality and Water Utility. Our letter to
the Audit Committee discussing our independence is included as part of the additional materials attached to this
report.

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings 5
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Appendix A - MNP Audit Process

Our audit was carried out in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, and included a
review of all significant accounting and management reporting systems, with each material year end balance, key
transaction and other events considered significant to the consolidated and Water Utility financial statements
considered separately.

Our audit process focused on understanding the controls utilized in management's reporting systems to the
extent necessary to identify overall and specific financial reporting risks. This risk assessment enabled us to
concentrate our audit procedures on the areas where differences were most likely to arise. Where possible,
reliance was placed on the controls within these systems to reduce the extent of our testing of transactions and
year-end balances. Our assessment was not, nor was it intended to be, sufficient to conclude on the effectiveness
or efficiency of internal controls.

During the course of our audit, we have:

s Examined, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated and Water
Utility financial statements;

s Assessed the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management;

e Obtained an understanding of the Municipality and Water Utility and its environment, the applicable
financial reporting framework and the Municipality's and Water Utility's system of internal control
(regardless of whether we relied on them for the purpose of the audit), sufficient to identify and assess the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and Water Utility financial statements and to design and
perform audit procedures;

e Reviewed and assessed those accounting systems deemed necessary to support our audit opinion;
s Evaluated the overall consolidated and Water Utility financial statement presentation;

e Performed a subsequent events review with management;

e Reviewed and assessed the status of contingencies, commitments and guarantees; and

e Reviewed and assessed exposure to environmental liabilities.

We have obtained written representations from management, included as additional materials following this
report, in order to confirm oral representations given to us and reduce the possibility of misunderstanding.
Specifically, we have obtained written confirmation of significant representations provided on matters that are:

= Directly related to items that are material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the consolidated and
Water Utility financial statements;

e Not directly related to items that are material to the consolidated and Water Utility financial statements,
but are significant, either individually or in the aggregate, to the engagement; and

e Matters relevant to management judgments or estimates that are material, either individually or in the
aggregate, to the consolidated and Water Utility financial statements.

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings 6
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Appendix B - Significant and Higher
Risk Areas and Responses

Significant Risk Areas and Responses

Significant Risk Area
Revenues

Revenue is a presumed fraud risk and therefore
considered a significant risk.

Response and Conclusion

Tax and water utility revenue

-MNP performed substantive analytical procedures
as well as a test of details using a random selection
based on a significant risk factor.

Government grants, transfers, grants-in-lieu and
other revenue

-MNP reviewed supporting documentation for
individual items exceeding our significant value
threshold as well as a test of details of the remaining
population using a random selection based on a
significant risk factor.

No issues were identified.

Management override of internal controls

There is a presumed fraud risk of management
override of internal control.

MNP performed a review of journal entries for
unusual entries and obtained supporting
documentation for high risk entries identified.

No issues were identified.

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings
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Higher Risk Areas and Responses

Higher Risk Area Response and Conclusion

Asset retirement obligation MNP obtained management's scoping of tangible

capital assets and their assessment of any potential
The liability is subject to significant management liability. We have recalculated the balance, reviewed
judgement and estimate uncertainty. assumptions used, such as inflation and discount
rates, and agreed to collaborative information.

No issues were identified.

Accrued employee benefits MNP obtained management's assessment of the

liability. We have recalculated the balance, reviewed
The information used to calculate portions of the assumptions used, and agreed to collaborative
liability subject to significant management information.

judgement and estimate uncertainty.

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings 8
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Appendix C - Summary of
Uncorrected Misstatements -
Consolidated

(SEE ATTACHED)

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings
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SUMMARY OF DIFFERENCES
Cape Breton Regional Municipality
March 31, 2024

SIGNIFICANT UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES DR(CR)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
LIKELY

DESCRIPTION OF DIFFERENCES IDENTIFIED PROJECTED AGGREGATE ASSETS LIABLITIES NET ASSETS
To record impact of payroll accrual
Prior period $ - $ - $ = ] 2 $ - 3 -
Current year $ - $ = $ - $ 810,375| § (810,375)| $ -
Total $ - % - 1% - 1% 810,375 | $ (810,375) | $ -
Final overall materiality 5 8,700,000 | 8,700,000 | $ 8,700,000 | § 8,700,000 | 8,700,000 | $ 8,700,000
Excess (shortfall) $ 8,700,000 | $ 8,700,000 | § 8,700,000 | $ 7,889,625 | § 7,889,625 | § 8,700,000
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Appendix D - Summary of
Uncorrected Misstatements - Water
Utility

(SEE ATTACHED)

Cape Breton Regional Municipality - March 31, 2024 Audit Findings
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SUMMARY OF DIFFERENCES
Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility
March 31, 2024

DESCRIPTION OF DIFFERENCES

SIGNIFICANT UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES DR(CR)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LIKELY

AGGREGATE NET ASSETS

IDENTIFIED PROJECTED ASSETS LIABLITIES

To record difference in accrued principal and interest

payment on debt in the Water Utility

Prior period $ - § - $ - $ - 3 375424 | § (375,424)
Current year $ (274119)] § - $ (274,119)| $ - $ 274,119 | § (274,119)
Total $ (274,119) | § - 1% (274,119)| § - 1% 649,543 | § (649,543)
Final overall materiality $ 1,044,000 | $ 1,044,000 | 1,044,000 | $§ 1,044,000 | $ 1,044,000 | § 1,044,000
Excess (shortfall) $ 769,881 | § 1,044,000 | § 769,881 | $ 1,044,000 | $ 394,457 | § 394,457
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Draft Independent Auditor's Report
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Independent Auditor's Report

To His Worship the Mayor and Members of Council of Cape Breten Regional Municipality:

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cape Breton Regional Municipality and its subsidiaries (the
"Municipality"), on pages 2-25 which comprise the consclidated statement of financial positionas at March 31, 2024,a
nd the consolidated statements of financial activities, changes in net debt and cash flows fo eatihen ended,and

respects, the
consolidated financial
ccordance with Canadian

consolidated flnanc:al position of the Municipality as at March 31, 2024, and the resul
position, changes in its net debt and its consolidated cash flows for the year then's de
public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally acceptéd.auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Respohéib' ities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent ofithe ipality in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidatedifi sté _émeﬂts in Canada, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requ e believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis;

Other Matters - Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formir
whole. The supplementary information inciuded

inion on the consolidated financial staterents taken as a
nages 26 - 32 is presented for the purposes of additional
information and is not a required part of the:consplidated financial statements. Such supplementary information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applie only to the extent necessary to express an opinion on the audit
of the consolidated financial statements-as.a whole.

Responsibilities of Management ghd Those"Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

accordance with Canadiaf pubific.sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary le the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatemnent, whether due aud or error,

MNP LLP
Commerce Tower 15 Darchester St., Suite 500 PO Box 1, Sydney NS, B1P 6G9 T:902.5393500 F: 802.564.6062
R PRAXITY MNP.ca
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whol
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that |ncludes ol
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted |
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatemen When
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the a8grega
they could reasonably be expected to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis ofithese
consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finaneial s gwm'ents, whether due
d obtain audit evidence
otdetecting a material

: s fraud may involve collusion,

of the Municipality’s internal controf,
« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used_ a
and related disclosures made by management.

ntmhe as a going concem. If we conclude that a
n in our auditor's report to the related

if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
évidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

opinion. Our conclusions are based on th
Howevet, future events or condltions ma'fy

timing of the audit and;signifi
identify during our audit.

nt audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

Chartered Professional Accountants

Commerce Tower 15 Dorchester St, Suite 500 PO Box 1, Sydney, Nova Scofia, BIP 6G3 MNP
7:902539.3900 F: 902.564.6062 MNP.ca
101



Independent Auditor's Report

To His Worship the Mayor and Members of Council of Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility {the "Water Utll:ty Y,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2024, and the statements of financial activities,
operating fund surplus, change in cash - depreciation reserve, accumulated allowance for deprec;atnon investment in
capital assets, special reserve and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the fi nanCJaE statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies. E

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the fi ﬂanmal position of
the Water Utility as at March 31, 2024, and the results of its financial performance and;" ash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with the Accounting and Reporting Handbook for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia.

Basis for Opinion

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1to the ﬁnancnal statements which describes the basis of
accounting. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Water Utility in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements: in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements. We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.*

Responsibifities of Management and Those Cha_:_jg_édﬁith Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the Accaunting and Reporting Handbook for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia, and for such internal cantrol as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or ermr i

In preparing the financial statements, manage'ment is responsible for assessing the Water Uiility's ability to continue

as a going concern, disclosing, as appllcable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management eith her intends to liquidate the Water Utility or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.” | b

Those charged with goVé‘rna_nce_ are responsible for overseeing the Water Utility's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatemernit, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadi'éh generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

LM tatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they

could, reasonab%y be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financiat
statements

MNP LLP
Commerce Tower 15 Dorchester St., Suite 500 PO Box 1, Sydney NS, B1P 6G9 T:902.539.3900 F:902.564.6062
R PRAXITY MNP.ca
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professicnal
judgment and maintain professionat skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obfain audit evidence th_at"is i
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaterent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve: coliuslon
forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal conirol. . :

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an oplnlon on the effectiveness
of the Water Utility's intarnal control. i

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of Eaccouhfihg astimates
and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclide on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern.basis of accountmg and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related. to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Water Utility's ability to continue as a going ¢ancem. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor'sveport to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are |nadecguate to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of ourauditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Water Utility to cease to cantifiue asia going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of i:he"'fnanciat statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial staternents represent the underiymg transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation,

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding,| the ﬁnamal mformatlon of the entities or business
activities within the Water Utility to express an opinion on.the cc}nsohdated financial statements, We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion, :

We communicate with those charged with governaice reéé'rding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit fmdmgs mcludlng any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Sydney, Nova Scotia

Chartered Professional Accountants

Commerce Tower 15 Dorchester St., Suite 500 PO Box 1, Sydney, Nova Scotia, B1P 6G9
1:902539.3900 F: 902.564.6062 MNP.ca
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Management Representations

(See Attached)
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality
320 Esplanade
Sydney, NS B1P /B9

lanuary 20, 2025

MNP 1P

Commerce Tower 15 Dorchester St.
Suite 500 PO Box 1

Sydney, Nova Scotia BIP 6G9

To Whom It May Concern:
In connection with your audit of the consolidated financial statements of Cape Breton Regional Municipality (the

"Munvicipality”} as at March 31, 2024 and for the year then ended, we hereby confirm to the best of our knowledge
and belief, the following representations made to you during the course of your audit.

We understand that your audit was made in accordance with Canadj enerally accepted auditing standards.
Accordingly, the audit included an examination of the accountin ntrols and related data, and tests of
the accounting records and such other auditing procedures a

considered material, regardtess of its moneta e/ if it I§ probable that its omission from or misstatement in the
consolidated financial statements would infl :
financial statements.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as'set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated July 30, 2024,
for the preparation and fair presentation of the Municipality's consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. We believe these consolidated financial statements are
complete and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Municipality as at
March 31, 2024 and the results of its aperations and its cash flows, in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

2. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements, and are reported in the appropriate period.

3. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the accounting policies followed in the preparation of the
Municipality's consolidated financial statements. Significant accounting policies, and any related changes to
significant accounting palicies, are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. The selection of
accounting policies is appropriate in accordance with the requirements of Canadian pubiic sector accounting
standards, and are applied consistently throughout the cansolidated financial statements.
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10.

1.

12.

13.

4.

15.

6.

All significant judgments made in making the accounting estimates have taken into account all relevant
information of which we are aware.

The selection and application of the methods, assumptions and data used in making the accounting estimates
are consistent and appropriate.

The assumptions relevant to accounting estimates and disclosures appropriately reflect our intent and ability to
carry out specific courses of action an behalf of the entity.

Disclosures related to accounting estimates, including disclosures describing estimation uncertainty, are
complete and are reasonable in the context of Canadian public sector accaunting standards.

No subsequent event requires adjustrnent to the accounting estimates and refated disclosures included in the
financial statements.

We are aware of and concur with the contents and results of the attached journal entries prepared by you, and
accept responsibility for the consolidated financial statement effects of the entries.

We believe the effects of those uncorrected consolidated financjal s{atement differences aggregated by you

Related party relationships and transactions have been appdgriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of Canadian publce

All events or transactions that have occurred.s.
Canadian public sector accounting stangards re
appropriately in the consolidated financia

All plans or intentions that may
appropriately reflected in the co
accounting standards,

offect the'\cyrryirig value or classification of assets and liabilities are
solidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian pubiic sector

All liabilities, both known and contingent, requiring recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial
staternents in accordance with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards have been
adjusted or disclosed as appropriate.

All outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel, have been
disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Alf assets, wherever located, to which the Municipality had satisfactory title at the year-end, have been fairly
stated and recorded in the consolidated financial statements. The assets are free from hypothecation, fiens and
encumbrances, except as noted in the consolidated financial statements. We have disclosed the nature and
carrying amounts of any assets pledged as collateral. Alf assets of uncertain value, and restrictions imposed on
assets, are appropriately reported in the consolidated financial statements.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

All aspects of laws, regulations or contractual agreements, including non-compliance, are appropriately
reflecied in the consolidated financial statements.

All cash accounts have been appropriately recorded in the consolidated financial statements and all terms and
associated conditions have been disclosed to you in full. We have provided you with the most current banking
agreements.

Accounts and contributions receivable are correctly described in the records and represent valid claims as at
March 31, 2024. An appropriate allowance has been made for losses from uncoilectible accounts and for costs
or expenses that may be incurred with respect to sales made or services rendered.

Inventory is correctly recorded in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the requirements of
Canadian public sector accounting standards. Alf required provisions for slow-maving, obsalete, and
unsaleable stock have been recorded. Inventory does not include any goads on consignment to others or
goods invoiced to customers.

Al charges to tangible capitat assets and additions under capital leases represent capital expenditures. No
expenditures of a capital nature were charged to aperations of the Municipality. Amortization of tangible
capital assets and equipment under capital leases has been recordedaccording to our best estimates of their
useful lives. All events or circumstances giving rise to impairments ate appropriately reflected in the
consofidated financial statements.

Government transfers have been recognized when the sfepds’authorized, and all eligibility criteria have
been met.

agreements,

Revenue has been recognized o sales have been made and items delivered, or services rendered, and
the amounts have been collected orarezdllectible. Revenues do not include any amourts arising from
consignment sales or from any other transaction from which the Municipality is not entitled to the proceeds.

We have identified all financiat instruments, including derivatives, and hedging relationships. These have been
appropriately recorded and disciosed in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards.

We have identified all known or potential contaminated sites and asset retirement obligations and the costs
associated have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.
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Information Provided

1.

10.

We have responded fully to all inquiries made to us and have made available to you:

e A complete record of all financial records that are relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements, and related data and minutes of the meetings of Coundil held
throughout the year to the present date as well as summaries of recent meetings for which minutes
have not yet been prepared;

« Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit;

« Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit
evidence.

We acknowledge management's responsibility for the design, implementation and operation of controls that
have been designed to prevent and detect fraud.

We have assessed the risk that the consolidated financial statements may be materially misstated as a resukt of

fraud, and have determined such risk to be tow,

laws and requlations, has a material effect on the consolidated fiarcial statements, we have disclosed to you
all known significant facts relating thereto, including circumsta lving management, employees having

Where the impact of any frauds or suspected frauds, and non—Wnce or possible non-compliance with

relationships and transactions of whichwie are aware.

We have no knowledge of side agreements (contractuai or otherwise) with any parties that have not been
disclosed to you.

The previous year's representation letter dated October 28, 2024 is still applicable to the prior year's
censolidated financial statements, and no matters have arisen that require restatement of those consolidated
financial statements.

There are no discussions with your firm's personnel regarding employment with the Municipality.
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Professional Services

1. We acknowledge the engagement letter dated July 30, 2024, which states the terms of reference regarding
your professional services.

2. We are not aware of any reason why MNP 1Lp would not be considered independent for purposes of the
Municipality's audit.

Sincerely,

Cape Breton Regional Municipality

Sighature Title
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Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility
320 Esplanade
Sydney, NS B1P 7B9

January 20, 2025

MNP LLP

Commerce Tower 15 Dorchester St
Suite 500 PO Box 1

Sydney, Nova Scotia B1P 6G9

To Whom It May Concern:
In connection with your audit of the financial statements of Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility (the

"Water Utility”) as at March 31, 2024 and for the year then ended, we hereby confirm to the best of our knowledge
and belief, the following representations made io you during the course of your audit.

We understand that your audit was made in accordance with Canadiaf Qenerally accepted auditing standards.
Accordingly, the audit included an examination of the accountin
the accounting records and such other auditing procedures a

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled aur responsibilities; out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated July 30, 2024,
for the preparation and fair presentatioh of the Water Utility's financial statements in accordance with
Accounting and Reparting Handbook for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia. We believe these financial statements
are complete and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Water Utility as at
March 31, 2024 and the results of its financial performance and its cash flows, in accordance with Accounting
and Reporting Handbook for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia.

2. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements, and
are reported in the appropriate period.

3. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the accounting policies followed in the preparation of the Water
Utility's financial staterents. Significant accounting policies, and any related changes 1o significant accounting
policies, are disclosed in the financial statements. The selection of accounting policies is appropriate in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting and Reporting Handbook for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia,
and are applied consistently throughout the financial statements.
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10.

.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

All significant judgments made in making the accounting estimates have taken intc account all relevant
information of which we are aware.

The selection and application of the methods, assumptions and data used in making the accounting estimates
are consistent and appropriate.

The assumptions relevant ta accounting estimates and disclosures appropriately reflect our intent and ability to
carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the entity.

Disclosures related to accounting estimates, including disclosures describing estimation uncertainty, are

complete and are reasonable in the context of Accounting and Reporting Handbaook for Water Utilities in Nova
Scotia.

No subsequent event requires adjustment to the accounting estimates and related disclosures included in the
financial statements.

We are aware of and concur with the contents and results of the attached journal entries prepared by you, and
accept responsibility for the financial statement effects of the entries.

We believe the effects of those uncorrected financial statement rences aggregated by you during the audit

t to the statement of financial position and for which
in Nova Scotia require adjustment or disclosure have

qrryirig value or classification of assets and liabilities are

appropriately reflected in the finan ments in accordance with Accounting and Reporting Handbook for

Water Utilities in Nova Scotia.

All liabilities, both known and contingent, requiring recognition or disclosure in the financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting and Reporting Handbook for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia
have been adjusted or disclosed as appropriate.

All outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel, have been
disciosed to you and are appropriafely reflected in the financial statements.

All assets, wherever located, to which the Water Utility had satisfactory title at the year-end, have been fairly
stated and recorded in the financial statements. The assets are free from hypothecation, fiens and
encumbrances, except as noted in the financial statements. We have disclosed the nature and carrying
amounts of any assets pledged as collateral. All assets of uncertain value, and restrictions imposed on assets,
are appropriately reported in the financial statements.
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7.

18.

19.

20.

21

22.

23

24.

25.

26.

All aspects of laws, regulations or contractual agreements, including non-compliance, are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements.

All cash accounts have been appropriately recorded in the financial statements and all terms and associated
conditions have been disclosed ta you in full. We have provided you with the mast current banking
agreements,

Accounts and contributions receivable are correctly described in the records and represent valid daims as at
March 31, 2024. An appropriate affowance has been made for losses from uncollectible accounts and for costs
or expenses that may be incurred with respect to sales made or services rendered.

Inventory is correctly recorded in the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Accounting

and Reparting Handbook for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia. All required provisions for slow-moving, obsolete,
and unsaleable stock have been recorded. Inventory does not include any goods on consignment to others or
goods invoiced to customers.

All charges to tangible capital assets represent capital expenditures. No expenditures of a capital nature were
charged to operations of the Water Utility. Depreciation of tangible capital assets has been recorded according
to our best estimates of their useful lives. All events or circumstances’giving rise to impairments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

Government transfers have been recognized when the tra
been met.

d, and all eligibility criteria have

interest have been accounted for. The current porti Ag=term debt is appropriately classified. All terms
and conditions have been fully disclosed in-fhe B :

the amounts have been collectéd or are coljectible. Revenues da not include any amounts arising from
consignment sales or fram any ot trangattion from which the Water Utility is not entitled to the proceeds.

We have identified all financial instruménts, including derivatives, and hedging relationships. These have been
appropriately recorded and disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting and Reporting Handbaok for Water Utilities in Nova Scotia.

We have identified all known or potential contaminated sites and asset retirement obligations and the costs
associated have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards..
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information provided

1.

0.

We have responded fully 1o all inquiries made to us and have made available to you:

» A complete recard of all financial records that are relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements, and related data and minutes of the meetings of Council held throughout the year
to the present date as well as summaries of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been
prepared;

« Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit;

s Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit
evidence,

We acknowledge management's responsibility for the design, implementation and operation of cantrols that
have been designed to prevent and detect fraud.

We have assessed the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud, and
have determined such risk to be low.

Where the impact of any frauds or suspected frauds, and non-comptiance or possible non-compliance with
laws and regulations, has a material effect on the financial staterpérts, we have disclosed to you ail known
significant facts relating thereto, including circumstances invol# agement, employees having significant
roles aver contrals, and others. We have made known to any alleg s of fraud or suspected fraud
communicated by employees, former employees, analy

any, are properly presented in the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of side agreements (contractual or otherwise) with any parties that have not been
disclosed to you.

The previous year's representation letter dated October 28, 2024 is still applicable to the prior year's financial
statements, and no matters have arisen that require restatement of those financial statements.

There are no discussions with your firm's personnel regarding emgloyment with the Water Utility.
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Professional Services

1. We acknowledqe the engagement letter dated July 30, 2024, which states the terms of reference regarding
your professional services.

2. We are not aware of any reason why MNP LLP would not be considered independent for purposes of the
Water Utility's audit.

Sincerely,

Cape Breton Regional Municipality Water Utility

Signature Title
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Independence Communication

(See Attached)
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MNP

January 20, 2025

Audit committee

Cape Breton Regional Municipality
320 Esplanade

Sydney, NS B1P 789

Dear Sirs/Mesdames:

We have been engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Cape Breton Regional Municipality (the
"Municipality") as at March 31, 2024 and for the year then ended.

CAS 260 Communication With Those Charged With Governance requires that we communicate with you matters that
are significant to our engagement. One such matter is relationships between the Municipality and its related entities or
persons in financial reporting oversight rales at the Municipality and MNP L and any affiliates ("MNP") that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear an our independence. In determining which refationships
to report, the Standard requires us {o consider relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate
professional accounting body and applicable legislation, covering sgth:rﬁét_ters as;

{a) Holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly,;j_'_h a client;

(t) Holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that giV’é§i_;th:(é right or responsibility to exert significant
influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client or.a related entity;

() Personal or business relationships of immediate famﬂy, close relatives, partners or retired partners, either
directly or indirectly, with a client or a related entlty

{d) Economic dependence on a client; and .

(&) Provision of non-assurance services in add tion to the audit engagement.

We are not aware of any relationship betwe___’__g_n__._ih_e Muﬁ_i:gipa!ity and MNP that, in our professional judgment, may
reasonably be thought to bear on our indébénd_énce, which have occurred from October 29, 2024 to January 20, 2025.

We hereby confirm that MNP is mdependenmwtth Tespect to the Municipality within the meaning of the Code of
Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Nova Scotia as of January 20, 2025.

The total fees charged to the Municipality for services from October 29, 2024 to January 20, 2025 were $18,430, which
represents the final invoice for the 2023 audit ($16,680) and indirect tax advisory services between October 6 and
November 28, 2024 ($1,750).

This report is intended solely for the use of Audit committee, managerment and others within the Municipality and
should not be used for any other purposes.

Sincerely,
MNP ELP
Commerce Tower 15 Dorchester St, Suite 500 PO Box 1, Sydney NS, BiP 6G9 T-902.535.3900 F: 902.564.6062
R PRAXITY MNP.ca
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